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General Information
Company   S P V I Public Company Limited
Nature of business  The Company is a major resale of products under the 

Apple brand, including computers, iOS devices (iPod, iPad, 
iPhone) and various other accessories, as well as products 
under other brands compatible with Apple products, such 
as hard drives for video storage, portable hard drives, 
print products, and graphic products. The Company also 
distributes peripherals for iOS devices, such as speakers, 
headphones, protective cases, and screen protectors.

Address    213/58-59 Soi Ladprao 94, Sriwara Road, Phlapphla,  
                            Wangthonglang Bangkok 10310
Tel :     02-559-2901-10 Fax: 02-559-2488
Company Registered Number  0107556000264
Website   www.spvi.co.th
Telephone no.    0-2559-2901-10
Fax no.    0-2559-2488

Other Relevant Information 
1. Share Registar          Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
            4th, 6th-7th Floor, Stock Exchange of Thailand
           62 Ratchadapisek Road, Klong Toey, Bangkok 10110
           Tel : +66 (0) 2359-1200  Fax : +66 (0) 2359-1262 

2. Auditor                 Mr. Wichart Lokatekrawee
� � � ��������$FSUJÇFE�1VCMJD�"DDPVOUBOU�/P�����
           Ernst & Young Co., Ltd.
� � � ����������SE�'MPPS
�-BLF�3BUDIBEB�0èDF�$PNQMFY
           193/136-137 Ratchadapisek Road, Bangkok 10110
           Tel : +66 (0) 2264-0777

           Fax : +66 (0) 2264-0789-90 
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Message from Chairman of the Board 
and Executive Chairman

SPVI Public Company Limited has been a dealer of 
advanced technology products during the past 20 years. 
APPLE, a renowned world leading brand, is our main product 
line. We have sustained continuous expansion, keeping 
pace with the rapid growth of the computer industry 
in Thailand, providing sales and services through various 
channels.

On December 19th, 2013, SPVI registered with the 
4UPDL�&YDIBOHF�PG�5IBJMBOE�BOE�GPS�UIF�ÇSTU�UJNF�IBE�B�
publ ic of fer ing of common stock. The excel lence 
responses from investors, indicated a high level of trust 
in SPVI, are an important step toward the future growth 
of our company. Our products and services offering are 
extensive, including hardware, software, consulting, after-
sales services and training. In order to set ourselves apart 
from other competitors in high-tech industries, we are 
planning to expand our services to address the needs of 
various market segments covering individual, organizations, 
as well as academic and governmental entities.

Our major strengths include the well-known, trusted products, 
supported by the experienced teams of professionals and 
strong customer base. Not only do these factors contribute 
to our continuous growth, but also out ability to adapt to 
the ever changing high-tech industry in order to provide 
our customers with the best possible products and services. 
We constantly strive to improve our customer services and 
support, utilizing the latest up to date technology to assist 
our customers to be more productive and competitive in 
their respective markets. Our objective is to grow together 
with all our customers.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to assure 
that the Board will manage, invest and justify all the 
investment to sustain the growth of the company in order 
to realize the best possible return to our shareholders.

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of the Board 

Mr. Min Intanate 
Executive Chairman 



Annual Report 2013

4

Board of Directors
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Name – Last Name   Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 
Position             Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Audit Committee 
Age             66 Years

Educations            - Master of Engineering ( Computer Science ) 
                       University of New South Wales, Australia
������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�$FSUJÇDBUJPO�1SPHSBN
                       (DCP) 5/2001
�����������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�/BUJPOBM�%FGFODF�$PMMFHF�

Shareholding Percentage    0.10% as of 31 Jan 2014
Appointment Date           29 October 2012

5 Years’ Work Experience
2012-Present         Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Audit Committee
                     S P V I Public Company Limited
2011-Present          Advisor to the Board of National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
2011-Present         Director Electronic Transactions Development Agency
                       Ministry of Information and Communication Technology
2010-2013            Chairman of the Board Thai Digital ID Co., Ltd.
1988-2013            Chairman of the Board Processing Center Co., Ltd.
2010-2012            Chairman of Sub Committee National Electronic 
                     Transactions Standards Ministry of Information and 
                     Communication Technology
2005-2012            Chairman of the Board National ITMX Co., Ltd.
1998-2010           Executive Director Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
1971-2010            Last Position – Senior Executive Vice-president
                     Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Name – Last Name   Mr. Min Intanate 
Position             Director and Executive Chairman
Age              59 Years

Educations            - Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,  Dominican    
                       University of California, USA
                     - PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology 
                       for Management, MahasaraKham University
                     - Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and 
                        Agricultural, Rajamangala  University of Technology  
                       Thanyaburi
                     - Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute 
                       of Technology (Taiwan)
�����������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�	%"1
�����
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�3PMF�PG�UIF�$IBJSNBO�1SPHSBN�	3$1
�����

Shareholding Percentage    0.08% as of 31 Jan 2014 
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present         Executive Chairman and Director S P V I Public 
                     Company Limited
�����1SFTFOU���������%JSFDUPS���$IJFG�&YFDVUJWF�0èDFS�470"�1VCMJD�
                     Company Limited
2008-Present         Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
2006-Present         Director Lease IT Public Company Limited
2006-Present         Chairman of the Board D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present         Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
1996-Present         Executive Chairman & Director IT City Public
                     Company Limited
1995-Present         Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1989-Present         Executive Chairman & Director  ARIP Public 
                     Company Limited
1987-Present         Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of the Board 

and Chairman of Audit Committee 

Board of Directors

Mr. Min Intanate 
 Director and Executive Chairman

Board of Directors
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Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 
Director

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director 
and Managing Director

Name – Last Name   Mr. Narathorn Wongvises  
Position             Director 
Age             60 Years

Educations            - Master of Science Industrial and Systems Engineering  
                        San Jose State University, USA
���������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�	%"1
�������

Shareholding Percentage    1.89% as of 31 Jan 2014 
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present         Director S P V I Public Company Limited
2012-Present         Advisor Silverlake (Thailand) Ltd.
2012-Present         Advisor AR Elastomer Co., Ltd.
2012-Present         Chairman of the Board PCC International Co., Ltd.
2011-Present         Advisor Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
2007-2012           Director Krung Thai Card Public Company Limited
2006-2012            Managing Director KTB Computer Services Co., Ltd.

Name – Last Name   Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Position             Director, Executive Director and Managing Director
Age              52 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration University of 
                       New Haven, U.S.A.
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�
                         (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    6.33% as of 31 Jan 2014  
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present           Director S P V I Public Company Limited
1996-Present           Director S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.
1994-Present           Director S P V Advance Corporation Ltd. 
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Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director  

and Vice president (Operations)

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 
Independent Director and 

Member of Audit Committee 

Name – Last Name   Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol  
Position             Director, Executive Director and 
                        Vice president (Operations)
Age             53 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration Major in Finance 
                         University of New Haven, U.S.A.
                       - Master of Computer Information System University 
                         of New Haven, U.S.A.
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN
                        (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    8.32% as of 31 Jan 2014
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present            Director S P V I Public Company Limited
1996-Present            Director S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.
1994-Present            Director S P V Advance Corporation Ltd.

Name – Last Name   Mr. Sujin Suwannagate  
Position             Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 
Age              63 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration Long Island  
                       University, U.S.A.
�����������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�
                       (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    0.08% as of 31 Jan 2014  
Appointment Date           29 October 2012

5 Years’ Work Experience
2012-Present           Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
                       S P V I Public Company Limited
2008-Present           Director, Siam City Leasing - Factoring Public 
                       Company Limited
- 1999-2011            Director and Member of Audit Committee
                        National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
- 2008-2010            Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
                        Siam City Securities Co., Ltd.
- 1984-2012            Executive Vice President
                       Siam City Bank Public Company Limited
- 2005-2008            Chairman of the Board SCIB Services Co., Ltd.
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Mrs. Susama Rativanich 
Independent Director and 

Member of Audit Committee 

Name – Last Name   Mrs. Susama Rativanich  
Position             Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 
Age              36 Years

Educations            - Master of Science in Information Systems, 
                       American University, U.S.A.
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�
                       Program (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    0.08% as of 31 Jan 2014   
Appointment Date           Date 29 October 2012

5 Years’ Work Experience
2012-Present           Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
                     S P V I Public Company Limited
2012-Present         Assistant Vice President, General Administration Division
                     MCOT Public Company Limited
2011-2012            Acting Assistant Vice President, General 
                          Administration Division MCOT Public Company Limited
2009-2012           Senior Secretary to Chairman
                     MCOT Public Company Limited
2008-2009            Secretary to Chairman MCOT Public Company Limited
2002-2008           Secretary to President MCOT Public Company Limited
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Executive Committee

Name – Last Name   Mr. Min Intanate 
Position             Director and Executive Chairman
Age              59 Years

Educations            - Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,  Dominican    
                       University of California, USA
                     - PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology 
                       for Management, MahasaraKham University
                     - Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and 
                        Agricultural, Rajamangala  University of Technology  
                       Thanyaburi
                     - Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute 
                       of Technology (Taiwan)
�����������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�	%"1
�����
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�3PMF�PG�UIF�$IBJSNBO�1SPHSBN�	3$1
�����

Shareholding Percentage    0.08% as of 31 Jan 2014 
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present         Executive Chairman and Director S P V I Public 
                     Company Limited
�����1SFTFOU���������%JSFDUPS���$IJFG�&YFDVUJWF�0èDFS�470"�1VCMJD�
                     Company Limited
2008-Present         Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
2006-Present         Director Lease IT Public Company Limited
2006-Present         Chairman of the Board D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present         Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
1996-Present         Executive Chairman & Director IT City Public
                     Company Limited
1995-Present         Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1989-Present         Executive Chairman & Director  ARIP Public 
                     Company Limited
1987-Present         Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Min Intanate 
 Director and Executive Chairman

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director 
and Managing Director

Name – Last Name   Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Position             Director, Executive Director and Managing Director
Age              52 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration University of 
                       New Haven, U.S.A.
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN�
                         (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    6.33% as of 31 Jan 2014  
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present           Director S P V I Public Company Limited
1996-Present           Director S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.
1994-Present           Director S P V Advance Corporation Ltd. 
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Mr. Pheerapol Amphan   
Executive Director and 

Vice President (Accounting and Finance)

Name – Last Name   Mr. Pheerapol Amphan   
Position             Executive Director and 
                       Vice President (Accounting and Finance)
Age             48 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration Lindenwood 
                        College, U.S.A.
������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�$PNQBOZ�4FDSFUBSZ�1SPHSBN�	$41


Shareholding Percentage    0.04% as of 31 Jan 2014 
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present           Executive Director and Vice President 
                       (Accounting and Finance)
                       S P V I Public Company Limited
1994-2010              Director, Accounting & Financial Management
                       CMGRP (THAILAND) Ltd.

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director  

and Vice president (Operations)

Name – Last Name   Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol  
Position             Director, Executive Director and 
                        Vice president (Operations)
Age             53 Years

Educations            - Master of Business Administration Major in Finance 
                         University of New Haven, U.S.A.
                       - Master of Computer Information System University 
                         of New Haven, U.S.A.
�������������������������$FSUJÇDBUF�%JSFDUPS�"DDSFEJUBUJPO�1SPHSBN
                        (DAP) SET 2012

Shareholding Percentage    8.32% as of 31 Jan 2014
Appointment Date           6 January 2011

5 Years’ Work Experience
2011-Present            Director S P V I Public Company Limited
1996-Present            Director S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.
1994-Present            Director S P V Advance Corporation Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

REVENUE COMPARISONS 2013

For the year ending of December 31                      2013           2012               2011

Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 

Shareholders’ Equity 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses

Net Profit 

Financial Ratio 

Net Profit Margin (%) 

Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 

Return on Assets (%) 

Return on Equity (%) 

Information per share
(1) Basic Earnings per share (Baht)  

Number of shares-Issued and paid up (share: Million) 
(2) Par value per share (Baht) 

419.12

149.25

269.87

2,304.85

2,279.35

16.26

0.71

0.55

3.45

6.03

0.06

400

0.50

524.71

302.91

221.80

2,520.08

2,455.04

45.88

1.78

1.37

9.28

22.38

3.74

12

10.00

441.50

262.58

178.92

2,219.92

2,129.92

57.49

2.59

1.47

13.02

32.13

4.79

12

10.00

(1) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive income) by the  weighted average number of ordinary 

shares in issue during the year

(2) On 10 April 2013, The par value of Company’s ordinary share has been change from 10 Baht per share to 0.50 Baht each

Total Revenues

 for the year

Apple Products

Non - Apple

Service

Other

Apple Products

Non - Apple

Service

Other

2013

Total Revenues

 for the year

2012

90.29%

8.51% 7.37%

0.35%0.85% 0.54% 0.09%

92.00%
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Vision Mission
Vision

The goals of the Company are: to be a leader in IT Solutions for the 
New Generation through the creative use of technology, to ensure 
that stockholders will get a good return on investment, and to 
participate in social care, especially for continuing education.

The Mission

1. Commitment to service and innovation for consumers who want 
to use creative technology.

2. Develop human resources; to create a culture in which employees 
work cooperatively to provide professional services to customers, 
with a focus on developing the knowledge of employees to keep 
pace with the ever-changing innovation.
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  The focus of the company is to operate under the 
corporate governance based on the principle of ethics, 
with a sense of responsibility to stockholders, both 
within and outside the organization, employees, 
customers, and the wider society, to lead to the 
development of a sustainable business.

  In the year of 2013, The company recognizes the 
importance of education by supporting projects such 
as:

  - Challenge based learning project. The company 
participated with Burapha University In order to use 
the Tablet as a teaching and learning tools for teachers 
in Eastern region 
  - iCamp 2013 is the computer project. Provides 
the students the opportunity to practice photography 
and video editing which can be use in daily life such 
as traveling and researching new knowledge for the 
future.

  In addition, the company has also joined The Better 
Thailand foundation project to support and encourage 
society of wisdom by the project to build a Learning 
Center.

Social Responsibility
Corporate
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   The Company’s core business is resale of products 
under the brand “Apple” including computers, iOS 
(iPod, iPad, iPhone) and various accessories as well 
as Non-Apple products such as hard drive storage for 
video, portable hard drive storage, publications and 
graphic products and peripherals for iOS (iPod, iPad, 
iPhone) such as speakers, headphones, case protection, 
screen protector etc. Moreover, the company has 
been expanding its service coverage to customers by 
setting up service centers for Apple products under 
the name “Smart Bar” and training centers for customers 
and enterprises according to Apple’s standard
    Presently, the Company has 17 branches which 
can be classified into 6 branches under iStudio brand, 
1 branch under iShop brand, 1 branch under iBeat 
CSBOE
���CSBODIFT�VOEFS�6n4UPSF�CSBOE�BOE���TFSWJDF�
centers under Smart Bar brand. In addition, the Company 
also has more than 48 outlets of Apple products 
nationwide including 22 outlets in IT City and 26 outlets 
in Big C Supercenters.

o Business Objectives 

    The Company aims to be a leading integrated IT 
educator and developer through Apple Education Solution 
in order to create Creative Learning orientation. The 
Company focuses on Edutivity which is educational 
oriented activities. Our experienced management team, 
sales team and Solution Engineer team can access our 
targeted customer groups including students, teachers 
in universities, private organisations and individuals. The 
Company will emphasise our leadership within targeted 
customer groups at all levels and professions which are 
marketing channels that tend to expand according to the 
trend of global economy. Moreover, Thailand has started 
using 3G across the country in order to support industrial 
growth during ASEAN Economic Community (AEC). 

Business Overview
Regarding this, computers, tablets and smartphones will 
play a major role in this modern connected world.
    Both individual and organizational targeted  groups 
have a need to develop their potential at all times, in 
particular, professionals who need to rely on 
technology in their works and individuals who want to 
use technology creatively throughout their lives (Creative 
Life Long Learning). Furthermore, the Company also 
aims to expand customer base into other organizations 
by diversify its products and solutions such as Color 
Management System, disk storage systems that can 
connect to File Server of an enterprise.
     Besides, we also have objective to increase sales 
through adding sales channels and after-sales services 
by expanding outlets and service centers including
J4UVEJP
�J#FBU
�6n4UPSF
�BOE�QPJOU�PG�TBMFT�JO�*5�$JUZ�BOE�
other locations.
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January 2011

March 2011

July 2011

October 2011

December 2011

January 2012

February 2012

June 2012

The Company was established with registered capital of 120.00 million 

baht.

n�"DRVJSFE�BMM�BTTFUT�BOE�FNQMPZFFT�XIJDI�SFMBUFE�UP�"QQMF�CVTJOFTT�
from SPV Advance Co., Ltd.

n�"DRVJSFE����CSBODIFT�XIJDI�BSF���J4VEJPT
���J4IPQ
���J#FBU
���
6n4UPSFT�BOE���4NBSU�#BST�
n�0QFOFE�"QQMF�DPSOFST�JO�*5�$JUZ�
0QFOFE�6n4UPSFT�BU�.BIJEPM�6OJWFSTJUZ�BOE�%IVSBLJK�1VOEJU�6OJWFSTJUZ�
Opened Apple corner in Big C

Opened iSudio at Central Plaza Grand Rama 9 department store.

0QFOFE�6n4UPSF�BU�#VSBQIB�6OJWFSTJUZ�
Opened Smart Bar at Cental Chaengwattana department store.

Opened iStudio at Gateway Ekamai department store.

 
Month / Year                      Important Events

Significant changes in the past year

P�$PNQBOZ�#BDLHSPVOE���4JHOJÇDBOU�DIBOHFT�JO�UIF�QBTU�ZFBS
    S P V I Public Company Limited was established by Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol and Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol, 
FYQFSJFODFE�EFBMFST�PG�"QQMF�QSPEVDUT�TJODF������XIP�ÇSTU�FTUBCMJTIFE�UIF�DPNQBOZ�VOEFS�UIF�OBNF�417�#VTJOFTT�
Center Co., Ltd., with registered capital of 3,000,000 baht. The main business objectives are to distribute Apple 
computers. Later, in 1994, in order to improve shareholder structure to conform with the business growth, Mr. Trisorn 
and Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol registered a new company in the name of SPV Advance Co., Ltd., with registered 
capital of 6,000,000 baht.
   After experiencing business success and continuous growth of ‘Apple’ market in Thailand, on 6th January 2011, 
Mr. Trisorn and Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol jointed hands with IT CITY Public Company Limited to set up SPVi Co., 
Ltd. with the registered capital of 120,000,000 baht. Regarding this, SPV Advance Co., Ltd. had transferred assets and 
employees associated with distribution of Apple products to the new company. As a result of this joint venture, the 
Company was able to expand distribution channels of Apple products into IT City Store nationwide.
   The company has also expanded its standard service to customers by setting up service centers for Apple products 
under the brand ‘Smart Bar’ and training center for customers and organizations under Apple standard. In this regard, 
the company is the only company in Thailand that has been appointed to be Authorized Apple Training Center in the 
country. In addition, the Company has also been appointed to be an authorized dealer for other product brands that 
are compatible with Apple products to support growing customers’ demand.
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April 2013

December 2013

n�$POWFSUFE�UP�QVCMJD�DPNQBOZ�MJNJUFE�
n�$IBOHFE�QBS�WBMVF�GSPN�������CBIU�UP������CBIU
�UIVT�UIF�OVNCFS�
of common shares increased from 120.00 million shares to 240.00 

million shares.

n�*ODSFBTFE�UIF�SFHJTUFSFE�DBQJUBM�CZ�BOPUIFS����NJMMJPO�CBIU�GSPN�
120.00 million baht to 200.00 million baht by issuing new 160.00 mil-

lion shares, par value at 0.50 baht allocated as follows; 

1) 50.00 million shares offered to existing shareholders which already 

allocated, resulting in the Company paid-up capital to be 290.00 mil-

lion shares.

2) 104.50 million shares offer to initial public offering.

3) 5.50 million shares offer to the Company’s directors and employees.

Increased paid-up capital to 400.00 million shares., at par value of 

0.50 baht, by issuing 160,000,000 newly-issued ordinary shares

 
Month / Year                       Important Events

Significant changes in the past year (continued)

16
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o  Product Characteristics & Service 

The Company’s core business is resale of products under the brand “Apple” including computers, iOS and accessories 
as well as Non-Apple products that can be used with Apple products, in order to accommodate integrated needs of customers. 
Moreover, the Company has also expanded its standard service to customers by setting up service centers for Apple 
products under the brand ‘Smart Bar’ and training center for customers and organizations under Apple standard. The 
company is the only company in Thailand that has been appointed to be Authorized Apple Training Center in the country. 
The products and services of the Company can be divided as follows: 

(1) Apple Products

The Company granted an authorization from Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of Apple products 
which can be categorized into three groups as follows; 
 - Apple Computer; MAC OS (MAC Operating System) which consist of iMac, Mac Pro, Mac Mini, MacBook Pro 
and MacBook Air. 
 - iOS Devices which consist of iPod, iPad and iPhone. For iPhone, since Apple appointed mobile operators to 
be the distributors of iPhone, thus the Company will purchase iPhone from those distributors. 

 - Apple Accessories such as battery charger, headphone, mouse, device connector, internet router and AppleCare 

Protection. 

Nature of Business 
o Revenues Structure 

Revenues from Apple Products

- Mac (Desktop and Laptop)

- iOS Devices

- Apple Accessories

 Total Revenues from Apple Products

Revenues from Non-Apple Products 

- Accessories

- Professional Graphics

- Software 

- Computer 

Total Revenues from Non-Apple Products 

Total Revenues from Sales 

Service Income 

Other Income 

Total Revenues

1,298.19

621.69

75.09

1,994.97

159.22

44.70

7.60

0.77

212.28

2,207.25

12.21

0.45

2,219.92

 
Revenue Classification 

        2011

Million      Percent
 Baht

        2012

Million       Percent
 Baht

         2013

 Million      Percent
  Baht

846.65

1,380.08

91.78

2,318.50

133.90

29.47

20.35

1.96

185.68

2,504.19

13.55

2.34

2,520.08

33.60

54.76

3.64

92.00

5.31

1.17

0.81

0.08

7.37

99.37

0.54

0.09

100.00

58.48

28.00

3.38

89.87

7.17

2.01

0.34

0.03

9.56

99.43

0.55

0.02

100.00

640.11

1,315.11

125.79

2,081.16

134.52

44.51

15.25

1.76

196.04

2,277.05

19.62

8.18

2,305

27.77

57.06

5.46

90.29

5.84

1.93

5.84

0.08

8.51

98.79

0.85

0.35

100.00
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(2) Non-Apple Products 

In order to accommodate customer’s needs, the Company also granted an authorization to be a reseller of non Apple 
products which can be divided into four categories as follows; 
 - Accessories such as hard drives for video storage, external hard disk, headphone, bluetooth, iPhone/iPad case and 
wireless loudspeaker. 
 - Professional Graphics comprising of Inkjet Printer (Pro Series) under “Epson” brand, imported paper for printing from 
Japan under “iPaper” brand, Digital Imaging and Graphics Art under “X-rite” brand 
 - Software products which consist of Adobe and EFI (Colorproof XF Program) 
 - Dell Computer 

(3) Services 

The company granted an authorized Apple Service Provider from Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited that can legally 
service all Apple products through its service centers which operate under the name “Smart Bar”. Moreover, the Company is 
the only reseller in Thailand who granted an Authorized Apple Training Center that can legally open its own training center for 
both retail and corporate customers.

18
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Risk Factors 
1. Risk from depending on major distributors

The Company granted an authorization from Apple South 
Asia (Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of Apple products 
and also opened three service centers to provide after 
sales service for all customers. In 2011, 2012 and period 
of nine-month ended 30 September 2013, the Company 
purchase products from Apple in the proportion of 75.75%, 
73.65% and 75.37% of total products purchased respectively. 
The contract with Apple is a year-to year contract which 
could be terminated at any time and that will have an 
adverse impact on the company’s business. However, Mr. 
Trisorn Volyarngosol, Mrs Petcharat Volyarngosol and the 
management team have experiences as an Apple reseller 
for more than 20 years as well as obtaining many awards 
from Apple. In addition, the Company also has the ability 
to generate a large number of sales and strictly complied 
with the terms and conditions of the contract. As a result, 
the management team believes that the Company will continue 
to gain credibility and support from Apple.

2. Risk associate with the product obsolescence
Apple products are the fast-paced technological change 

as well as other IT products. Driven by rapid ICT changed, 
new products are developed and launched into the market 
with an increasing speed to meet the customer’s demand; 
therefore the Company may encounter problems with the 
inventory management for the out-dated models which 
cannot be sold in the market.
   However, the management team has a good understanding 
of customer’s needs due to the experienced management 
in the business for a long period of time. Moreover, the 
Company also appointed product managers to monitor 
inventory stores and carefully select the products to be 
sold to each type of customers. To prevent an obsolescence 
problem, the product manager conducts a survey about 
DVTUPNFSkT�SFRVJSFNFOUT�UISPVHI�TBMFTQFSTPOT�BOE�CSBODI�
managers regularly. Furthermore, the Company follows new 
products information and trend of IT from Apple and other 
resellers which will help the Company in selecting the 
QSPEVDUT�UP�ÇU�JUT�DVTUPNFSkT�OFFET��.PSFPWFS
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�IBT�
BO�FèDJFOU�JOWFOUPSZ�NBOBHFNFOU�CZ�VTJOH�UIF�JOWFOUPSZ�
online system to link the inventory data of all branches, by 
the end of each day, the Company will perform a random 
check for the inventory of each branch and compare to 
the report generated by the Company’s inventory system. 
For the branches with low inventory turnover, the products 
will be transferred to the other branches and the Company 
will provide promotional activities which may help boost 

UIFJS�TBMFT��0O�UIF�PUIFS�IBOE
�UIF�CSBODIFT�XJUI�JOBEFRVBUF�
inventory will be able to check the products information from 
the other branches immediately, as a result the products 
will be sold faster before it outdated. Apart from that, 
when Apple launches new products to replace the old 
models, the Company will be compensated for the price 
difference which will enable the Company to reduce the 
old products’ price in order to be able to compete in the 
market. 

3. Risk associated with the competition
Base on the fact that Information and Communication 

Technology (ICT) industry has experienced a rapid growth 
particularly smartphone and tablet PC resulting in high 
competition among vendors such as Apple, Samsung, Nokia 
and HTC. The vendors have to develop and launch new 
QSPEVDUT�GSFRVFOUMZ��)PXFWFS
�UIF�"QQMFkT�POHPJOH�QSPEVDU�
innovation such as Mac OSX for Apple Computer, revamped 
iOS for smartphone and tablet, Clouding System and Retina 
Display for laptop, a variety of application as well as the 
safety of its network system has allowed Apple to capture 
B�IJHIFS�QSPQPSUJPO�PG�QSPÇU�BOE�NBJOUBJO�JUT�NBSLFU�TIBSF��
As can be seen from StatCounter Global Stats indicated that 
the smartphone market share in Thailand has been changed 
dramatically in the past couple years which Apple market 
share continued to increase from 8.54% in 2010 to 30.03% 
in 2012 and 34.29% in 2013. Concerning competition among 
resellers, currently there are seven resellers in Thailand who 
granted authorization from Apple and operate the business 
in the same manner as the Company. However, each reseller 
cannot open same type of stores at the same location and 
SFRVJSFE�UP�TVCNJU�BQQMJDBUJPO�GPS�BO�BQQSPWBM�GSPN�"QQMF�
CFGPSF�PQFOJOH�OFX�CSBODIFT��$POTFRVFOUMZ
�UP�TVDDFTT�JO�
UIF�CVTJOFTT�FBDI�SFTFMMFS�IBWF�UP�FèDJFOUMZ�NBOBHF�UIFJS�
own distribution channels in order to serve and accommodate 
XJEF�SBOHF�PG�DVTUPNFST�BT�XFMM�BT�QSPWJEJOH�CFUUFS�RVBMJUZ�
services. 
   Regarding distribution channels, at present, the Company 
has 17 branches mostly located in prime area of Bangkok 
and the company also has 48 Apple corners nationwide with 
22 branches in IT City and 26 branches in Big C. Moreover, 
the Company also provides service centers which offer after 
sales services for all Apple products to provide one-stop 
solutions for all customers. Apart from that, most resellers 
focus more on retails market by opening more branches 
nationwide while the Company has a wide range of corporate 
and educational customers since the Company’s management 
engaged in this business for a long period of time. 
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Furthermore,the Company also creates Apple Education 
Solution by combining Apple products with other products to 
serve the institutional customers and the Company provides 
experienced staffs to support the education. Last but not 
least, the Company also success in installing the network 
TZTUFN�GPS�NBOZ�TDIPPMT�BOE�VOJWFSTJUJFT��$POTFRVFOUMZ
�BMM�
of these reasons will have played a major role in helping the 
Company to become a successful leader in the corporate 
and educational markets. 

4. Risk under lease agreement
Since the Company has provided products and services to 

retail customers through 17 branches (6 iStudios, 1 iShop, 
��J#FBU
���6nTUPSFT
�BOE���TFSWJDF�DFOUFST�XIJDI�BSF�MPDBUFE�
JO� TIPQQJOH� NBMMT
� PèDF� CVJMEJOHT� BOE� VOJWFSTJUJFT
� UIF�
Company has to rent and sign lease agreements in both 
short-term and long- term. Thus, the Company might not 
be able to renew the contracts or encounter changes in 
terms agreement that could increase costs to the Company. 
As of December 31, 2013, one of the Company’s branches 
has the remaining contractual term of 17 years. The others 
are short-term contracts which are no more than 3 years. 
However, the management of the Company has been a 
good partner of leaser for more than 10 years. Therefore, 
the renewal risk remains low.

5. Risk associate with working capital
As Apple products become more popular particularly when 

OFX�QSPEVDUT�BSF�MBVODIFE
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�SFRVJSFT�B�MBSHF�
OVNCFS� PG� XPSLJOH� DBQJUBM� JO� PSEFS� UP� QSPWJEF� TVèDJFOU�
products to all customers. However, the Company has loans 
outstanding with various banks and the Company may factor 
its receivables and compounded with fund raising from the 
initial public offering so as to strengthen its working capital. 
Apart from that, most of the company’s products are sold 
to cash buyers. Although the Company will focus more on 
selling to corporate customers, it still remained short cash 
cycle at 11.38 days for the year 2013 which will help the 
$PNQBOZ�UP�NBOBHF�JUT�XPSLJOH�DBQJUBM�FèDJFOUMZ��

6. Risk associated with fraud (Operational risk) 
    The Company needs to distribute the products to branches 
and from the fact that those products are valuable, mobile and 
desirable, the Company might face fraud from operational
staffs. Therefore, the Company had deployed the internal 
DPOUSPM�BOE�WFSJÇDBUJPO�TZTUFN
�BMTP�JOWFOUPSZ�TZTUFN�UIBU�

is supported by IT. Moreover, the Company assigned 
branch managers to randomly check the products inven-
tory level on a daily basis, especially high-value products. 
"DDPVOUJOH�PèDFST�BMTP�QFSGPSN�DPNQMFUF�QIZTJDBM�JOWFO-
tories counting once a month. Staffs in the branch are 
responsible for lost items, unless explicit evidence shows 
the incident is inevitable and not caused by the Company 
employees. Therefore, the protocol and procedure will limit 
UIF�MPTT�XJUIJO�UIF�JOTJHOJÇDBOU�BNPVOU�

7. Risk from relying on management team who are major 

shareholders of the Company 

The Company was established by Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 
and Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol who have experiences as 
Apple reseller and have a good relationship with Apple for 
more than 20 years, thus the two managements have played 
an important role in the Company. As a result, the Company 
may risk from depending on these managements. However, 
Volyarngosol group still holds 23.87% of the total capital 
after IPO which is considered to be in a high proportion 
which can be incentive for the managements. Moreover, the 
Company has policy to support work as a team and hire 
more professional staffs by focusing on the Company’s
FèDJFODZ�BOE�QPUFOUJBM�EFWFMPQNFOU��'VSUIFSNPSF
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�
DMFBSMZ�EFÇOFT�UIF�TDPQF�PG�EVUJFT�BOE�SFTQPOTJCJMJUJFT�JO�UIF�
Company’s authority table. 
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1. IT City Public Company Limited

2. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

3. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

4. Ms. Patchara kiatnuntavimon

5. Mrs. Pattra Pongpianskul

6. Mr. Somchai Volyarngosol

7. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises

8. Mr. Peerapat Volyarngosol

9. Ms. Patrinda Volyarngosol

10. Mrs. Nopparat Kulsuppaisan

11. Other Shareholders

Total

116,000,000 

33,294,000

25,311,050

11,750,000

  9,779,863

8,506,860

7,550,000

7,359,668

7,359,112

5,700,000

167,389,447

400,000,000

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % of shareholding 

29.00

8.32

6.33

2.93

2.44

2.13

1.89

1.84

1.84

1.43

41.85

100.00

Dividend Policy 
The company’s dividend policy is to pay dividend not less 

UIBO����QFSDFOU�PG�OFU�QSPÇU�BGUFS�UBY��)PXFWFS
�UIF�QBZPVU�SBUJP�
may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations. 

Shareholder Structure
As of December 31, 2013 The company has registered capital 200.00 million baht and paid up 200.00 
million baht Divided to Ordinary share 400 million shares, at Baht 0.50 par value. 

Top Ten Major shareholders as of 31 January 2014 include :
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Management Structure and 
Corporate Governance 

 Board of
    Directors

Executive 
Committee

Managing
 Director

Audit 
Committee

Internal 
Audit
 

Accounting &
Finance

Accounting Finance Engineering
& Service

Sale Retail 1 Retail 2 Product Marketing

Operation
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Name – Last Name                                 Position

           Director

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 

4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich

BoardMeetingAttendant 

 / Total Meeting 

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

4/4

4/4

Audit Committee Meeting Attendant  

/ Total Meeting

4/4

-

-

-

-

4/4

4/4

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 

4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Audit Committee

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 

Board of Directors 

Company’s Secretary 

   Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 
Authorized Directors 

   Mr. Narathorn Wongvises or Mr. Min Intanate co-signs with either Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol or Mrs. Petcharat 
7PMZBSOHPTPM�UPHFUIFS�XJUI�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�TFBM�BèYFE

Director Meeting Attendance for the year 2013

1. Carry out its responsibilities in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s objectives and Articles   
   of Association, including the resolutions of the shareholders’ meetings honestly and protect interest of the Company;
2. Has the authority to elect Board of Management to perform one or several tasks as assigned by the Board of 
���%JSFDUPST
�BQQPJOU�$IJFG�&YFDVUJWF�0èDFS�BOE�$PNNJUUFFT�TVDI�BT�UIF�"VEJU�$PNNJUUFF
�/PNJOBUJPO�BOE�3FNVOFSBUJPO�
   Committee as deemed appropriate.
3. Determine objectives, directions, policies, operating plans and budgets of the Company; oversee the administration 
  and management of the Committees or individuals who have been assigned by the Board to be according to the  
   prescribed policy;
4. Review and approve policies, directions, strategies, business plans, annual budget for the business operation, annual 
   expenditure budget and large investment projects of the Company which are proposed by the Board of Management;

Authorized Duties of the Board of Directors 
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	B
�5SBOTBDUJPOT�UIBU�CZ�MBX�SFRVJSF�UIF�SFTPMVUJPO�PG�UIF�TIBSFIPMEFSTk�NFFUJOH�
	C
�5SBOTBDUJPOT�JO�XIJDI�EJSFDUPST�IBWF�BO�JOUFSFTU�BOE�BSF�SFRVJSFE�CZ�MBX�PS�4UPDL�&YDIBOHF�PG�5IBJMBOE�UP�
    be approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

The following transactions can be undertaken only after approval from Board of Directors’ Meeting and not less 
than three out of four votes of the attendees who are entitled to vote in the shareholders’ meeting. 

(a) Sale or transfer of all or a substantial part of the Company;
	C
�1VSDIBTF�PS�BDRVJTJUJPO�PG�BOPUIFS�DPNQBOZ�PS�B�QSJWBUF�DPNQBOZ
(c) Make, amend or terminate agreement relating to all or substantial part of business of the Company, assign  
    a third party to manage the businesses of the Company, or merge the business with other juristic person 
����XJUI�PCKFDUJWF�UP�TIBSF�QSPÇUT�
(d) Amendment in memorandum of association or regulations;
(e) Increase, or decrease in capital, bond issuance, merger or dissolution of the Company.

Executive Committee 

Mr. Min Intanate

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

Executive Chairman

Managing Director

Vice President – Operations

Vice President – Accounting & Finance 

                       Name-Surname          Position

1. Propose objectives, policies, business plans and strategies, and annual budget of the Company to be considered by  
   the Board of Directors;
2. Monitor business operations of the Company to be in accordance with policies, implementation plans and budgets ap-
   proved by the Board of Directors
3. Approve normal business transactions of the Company under the investment or budget approved by the Board of Directors.
   The amount for each transaction must be within the given authority approved by the Board of Directors;
4. Present organizational structure, number of manpower and management authority to the Board of Directors for approval;
5. Consider and adjust bonuses for employees ranking below Managing Directors and approve manpower which is not  
   included in the annual budget;
6. Has the power to appoint or hire a consultant regarding the administration within the organization to create utmost  
���FèDJFODZ�

Authorities and Responsibilities of the Executive Board 

5. Monitor that the operations are conforming to implementation plans and budgets.
���DPOTJEFS�BOE�BQQSPWF�PUIFS�JNQPSUBOU�CVTJOFTTFT�SFMBUFE�UP�UIF�$PNQBOZ�PS�EFFN�BQQSPQSJBUFE�UP�CFOFÇU�UIF�$PNQBOZ��5IF�

following transactions can be undertaken only after approval from the shareholders’ meeting has been granted. However, 
JU�JT�QSFTDSJCFE�UIBU�JO�B�USBOTBDUJPO�XIFSF�B�EJSFDUPS�PS�BOZ�PUIFS�QFSTPO�NBZ�IBWF�B�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�XJUI�UIF�
Company or its subsidiary (if any) the director is not eligible to vote on the transaction.
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���$POTJEFS�QSPÇU�BOE�MPTT�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ
�QSPQPTFE�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOET�PS�BOOVBM�EJWJEFOET�UP�UIF�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST�
   for approval;
8. Has the power to authorize any person(s) to carry out a task under the supervision of the Board of Management 
   or delegate authority to the person(s) as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors and within the period deemed 
   appropriate. The Board of Directors may dismiss, withdraw, change or reassign the authorized person(s) or the 
   delegation of authority as appropriate;
9. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

  The Board of Directors may delegate one or more director(s) or any other person to carry out particular activities 
on behalf of the Board. However, this delegation excludes the authorization or sub-authorization of the director(s) or 
BQQPJOUFF	T
�JO�UIF�BQQSPWBM�PG�USBOTBDUJPOT�XJUI�QPUFOUJBM�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�	BT�EFÇOFE�CZ�UIF�/PUJÇDBUJPO�PG�UIF�4FDVSJUJFT�
and Exchange Commission and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or related agencies) with the Company or its 
subsidiaries and/or related companies. The Board of Management will not have authority to act in this matter. The matter will 
have to be proposed to the Board of Directors Meeting and/or shareholders meeting (as the case may be) for consideration 
and approval. There is exception for a transaction in accordance with normal business and commercial operation as 
prescribed by the SEC and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or related agencies.

Remarks: * JT�B�%JSFDUPS�XIP�IBT�TVèDJFOU�LOPXMFEHF�BOE�FYQFSJFODF�UP�CF�BCMF�UP�FOTVSF�UIF�SFMJBCJMJUZ�PG�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
Secretary of the Audit Committee 

  Ms. Yupa Benchawikai 

Audit Committee

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse* 

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate *

Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Audit Committee

                 Name-Surname              Position

Authorities and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee 

���3FWJFX�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�QSPDFTT�UP�FOTVSF�BDDVSBDZ�BOE�BEFRVBDZ�
���3FWJFX�UIBU�UIF�$PNQBOZ�IBT�BQQSPQSJBUF�BOE�FèDJFOU�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�BOE�JOUFSOBM�BVEJU�TZTUFNT
�EFUFSNJOF�UIF�
   independence of the internal audit unit independence, as well as recommend the appointment, transfer and dismissal  
   of the chief of the internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit; 
3. Review the Company’s compliance with the securities and exchange law, regulations of the Exchange and other laws  
   relating to the Company’s businesses;
4. Consider, select, nominate and recommend the remuneration of an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, 
   as well as attend a non-management meeting with the auditor at least once a year; 
���3FWJFX�SFMBUFE�USBOTBDUJPOT�PS�UIPTF�PG�QPTTJCMF�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�UP�FOTVSF�UIFZ�BSF�DPNQMJBOU�XJUI�BMM�SFMFWBOU�MBXT�
���BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�PG�UIF�&YDIBOHF
�BOE�UIBU�UIFZ�BSF�SFBTPOBCMF�BOE�PG�NBYJNVN�CFOFÇU�UP�UIF�$PNQBOZ
6. Prepare and disclose in the Company’s annual report, a report on the Audit Committee’s monitoring activities which 
   must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee chairman and consist of, at least, the following information: 

	B
�"O�PQJOJPO�PO�UIF�BDDVSBDZ
�DPNQMFUFOFTT�BOE�DSFEJUBCJMJUZ�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSU

	C
�"O�PQJOJPO�PO�UIF�BEFRVBDZ�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�TZTUFN

(c) An opinion on the compliance with the securities and exchange laws, regulations of the Exchange or laws   
   pertinent to the Company’s businesses,
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d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
	F
�"O�PQJOJPO�PO�USBOTBDUJPOT�UIBU�NBZ�MFBE�UP�DPOÈJDUT�PG�JOUFSFTUT

(f) The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee member,
	H
�"O�PQJOJPO�PS�PWFSWJFX�SFDFJWFE�CZ�UIF�BVEJU�DPNNJUUFF�UISPVHI�UIF�QFSGPSNBODF�PG�JUT�EVUJFT�BT�EFÇOFE�JO�
   the committee’s charter,
(h) Other transactions according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be disclosed to the shareholders and  
    general investors within the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors

7. To perform any other task assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors and agreed by the Audit Committee

Management Team 

1. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

2. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

3. Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

4. Mrs. Duangnapa 

5. Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

6. Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant

Managing Director 

Vice President – Operations

Vice President – Accounting & Finance

Assistant Vice President – Product Management 

Senior Manager – Engineering and Service 

Senior Manager – Retail 1

                  Name-Surname                      Position

26
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Authorities and Duties of the Managing Director
1. Supervise, administer and operate  normal  business 
PQFSBUJPOT�GPS�UIF�CFOFÇU�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�BOE�JO�BDDPSEBODF�
with the Company’s objectives and regulations, as well as 
rules, resolutions, policies, plans and budgets approved by 
the Board of Directors Meeting and/or the Shareholders’ 
Meeting under the relevant laws and authority prescribed by 
the Board of Directors;

2. Supervise and/or manage daily business operation of the 
Company;

3. Prepare and present business policies, business plans, 
operational plans and goals, business strategies, annual 
budgets for business operation, annual expenditure budget 
and determine management authority for presentation to the 
Board of Management and the Board of Directors;

4. Adopt policies of the Board of Directors in order to 
determine directions, strategies and business goals so as to 
EFÇOF�DPSF�NJTTJPOT�GPS�JNQMFNFOUBUJPO�PG�UIF�NBOBHFNFOU�
team;

5. Supervise, monitor and follow up on performance of 
the management and operation teams, provide suggestions 
and solutions to problems so that they can implement the 
strategies and plans laid in accordance with the Company’s 
policies;

6. Monitor and evaluate performance of the management 
and operation teams, report progress of the management 
and operation to the Board of Management, the Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors on regular basis;

���*TTVF�PSEFST
�SFHVMBUJPOT
�OPUJÇDBUJPOT�BOE�NFNPSBOEVN�PG 
understandings to ensure that the operations are conforming 
with policies and interest of the Company as well as to 
maintain discipline within the organization;

8. Determine management directions to cover details for 
selection, training, hiring and dismissal of employees, rates 
of wages, salaries, commissions, bonuses and welfares for 
employees within the framework approved by the Board of 
Directors;

9. Has the power to appoint and dismiss employees of the 
Company in positions lower than Director;

10. Has the authority to approve expenses for normal business 
operations such as purchasing of assets, important investment 
GPS�UIF�CFOFÇU�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�BOE�PUIFS�USBOTBDUJPOT�GPS�
UIF�CFOFÇU�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ��.BOBHJOH�%JSFDUPS�JT�BVUIPSJ[FE�

to approve only normal trade transactions under the budget 
prescribed in Authority Table that have been approved by 
the Board of Directors.

Selection of Directors
  The selection of Directors of the Company will be made 
through the shareholders’ meeting. The Board of Directors 
shall consider nominees according to experience, knowledge, 
TLJMMT�BOE�BUUSJCVUFT�SFRVJSFE�CZ�MBX�BT�UIF�$PNQBOZ�EPFT�
OPU�IBWF�UIF�/PNJOBUJOH�$PNNJUUFF�UP�ÇOE�DBOEJEBUFT�GPS�
Directors. The shareholders’ meeting will then elect the 
Company’s directors according to the process prescribed 
in the Articles of Association.

Compositions and Appointment of the Directors
  Compositions, selection, appointment, dismissal or withdrawal 
of the Company’s Directors are prescribed in the Company’s 
Articles of Association and can be summarized as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company will comprise not 
less than 5 members whose appointment has been approved 
by the shareholders’ meeting and not less than half of the 
EJSFDUPST�NVTU�SFTJEF�JO�5IBJMBOE�BOE�QPTTFTT�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�
prescribed by laws.

2. The shareholders’ meeting shall elect the directors according 
to the following rules and procedures:

(1) Each shareholder shall be entitled to one vote to   
   one share;
(2) Each shareholder must exercise his/her votes to elect 
    one or several directors. In case of voting for several 
   directors,  shareholder cannot distribute the votes 
   among nominees.
(3) Nominees who receive the largest number of votes, 
   in descending order, shall be elected to the Board 
���VOUJM�UIF�WBDBODJFT�BSF�ÇMMFE��*O�UIF�FWFOU�PG�OPNJOFFT�
���SFDFJWJOH�FRVBM�WPUFT�BOE�FYDFFEJOH�UIF�OVNCFS�PG�
���WBDBODJFT�UP�CF�ÇMMFE
�UIF�DIBJSNBO�PG�UIF�NFFUJOH�
   shall cast the deciding vote

3. At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third
of the directors shall retire. If one-third is not a round 
number, the number closest thereto shall be the applicable 
OVNCFS��5IF�EJSFDUPST�UP�WBDBUF�PèDF�XJUIJO�UIF�ÇSTU�BOE�
second year following company registration shall draw lots. 
*O�TVCTFRVFOU�ZFBST
�UIF�EJSFDUPST�TFSWJOH�UIF�MPOHFTU�TIBMM�
SFTJHO��5IF�EJSFDUPST�XIP�WBDBUF�PèDF�BSF�FMJHJCMF�GPS�SF�FMFDUJPO�
by shareholders.
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���"OZ�EJSFDUPS�XIP�XJTIFT�UP�SFTJHO�GSPN�PèDF
�TIBMM�TVCNJU�
a letter of resignation to the Company. The resignation shall 
be effective on the date when the Company receives the 
letter.
   The director who wishes to resign as above, may notify 
the Registrar of his resignation.

5. In the event that a position of director becomes vacant 
GPS�BOZ�SFBTPO�PUIFS�UIBO�UIF�FOE�PG�UIF�PèDF�UFSN
�UIF�
Board of Directors shall, on the next board meeting, appoint 
B�RVBMJÇFE�QFSTPO
�XJUI�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�BDDPSEJOH�UP�UIF�1VCMJD�
Limited Companies Act and/or Securities and Stock 
Exchange Laws, to be a new director, except if such 
SFNBJOJOH�PèDF�UFSN�JT�MFTT�UIBO���NPOUIT��5IF�SFQMBDFNFOU�
EJSFDUPS�TIBMM�IPME�PèDF�POMZ�GPS�UIF�SFNBJOEFS�PG�UIF�PèDF�
term of the director whom he replaces
    The resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to the 
ÇSTU�QBSBHSBQI�NVTU�CF�BQQSPWFE�CZ�UIF�WPUFT�PG�OPU�MFTT�
than three-fourths of the number of the remaining directors. 
5IF�TIBSFIPMEFSTk�NFFUJOH�NBZ�SFNPWF�B�EJSFDUPS�GSPN�PèDF�
before the end of term with a resolution of not less than 
three-fourths of the total votes of shareholders attending the 
meeting and eligible to vote and altogether holding not less 
than one-half of the total number of all shares held by the 
shareholders, attending the meeting and eligible to vote

Compositions and Appointment of Independent Director
��5IF�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST�TIBMM�KPJOUMZ�DPOTJEFS�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�
PG�UIF�DBOEJEBUFT�GPS�*OEFQFOEFOU�%JSFDUPS�CBTJOH�PO�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�
and prohibitions according to the Public Limited Companies 
"DU
�4FDVSJUJFT�BOE�4UPDL�&YDIBOHF�-BXT
�/PUJÇDBUJPOT�PG�
SEC and/or related rules and regulations. In addition, the 
Board of Directors will select candidates for Independent 
%JSFDUPST�GSPN�RVBMJÇFE�QFSTPOT�XIP�IBWF�XPSLJOH�FYQFSJFODF�
and suitable skills to be proposed to the shareholders’ 
meeting. Regarding this, the Company has a policy to 
appoint Independent Directors at least 1 in 3 of the total 
number of Directors and not less than 3 persons.

Compositions and Appointment of Audit Committee
  The Board of Directors will appoint at least 3 members 
to the Audit Committee and each member must be an 
independent director. The Audit Committee members must 
QPTTFTT�UIF�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�TUJQVMBUFE�CZ�UIF�TFDVSJUJFT�BOE�
FYDIBOHF�MBXT
�OPUJÇDBUJPOT
�SVMFT�BOE�PS�SFHVMBUJPOT�PG�UIF�
4UPDL�&YDIBOHF�PG�5IBJMBOE�UIBU�QSFTDSJCFT�UIF�RVBMJÇDB-
tions and scope of responsibilities of the Audit Commit-
tee. In addition, the Audit Committee shall possess the 

GPMMPXJOH�BEEJUJPOBM�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�
1. Not being a Director appointed by the Board to make 
decision on operations of the Company, its subsidiaries, 
KPJOU�DPNQBOJFT
�TVCTJEJBSJFT
�BèMJBUF�PS�FOUJUJFT�UIBU�NBZ�
IBWF�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�
2. Not being a Director of a holding company, subsidiary or 
BèMJBUF�PG�UIF�TBNF�MFWFM�UIBU�JT�MJTUFE�JO�TUPDL�FYDIBOHF�
���1PTTFTT�TVèDJFOU�LOPXMFEHF�BOE�FYQFSJFODF�UP�CF�BCMF�
to act as Audit Committee. At least one of the members 
of the Audit Committee must be knowledgeable and ex-
perienced enough to be able to review the reliability of 
ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�

The term of Chairman and member of Audit Committee 
shall be valid until end of their term as Directors of the 
Company.

Upon completing their term, Chairman and member of the 
Audit Committee are eligible for re-election by shareholders.
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Remuneration of Directors and Management Team
- Monetary Remuneration

  Remuneration of Directors

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse* 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 

4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate* 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich* 

 Total

300,000

380,000

1,080,000

-

-

100,000

100,000

1,960,000

1,800,000

480,000

480,000

-

-

600,000

600,000

3,960,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

15,000

20,000

20,000

135,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

35,000

       Name-Surname                      Year 2012                               Year 2013

                                    Remuneration   Meeting Allowance**   Remuneration    Meeting Allowance**

Remarks * Director who has been appointed by the Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2555 on 29th October 2012
** Meeting Allowances in 2012 are recorded as expenses in Q1 of 2013

    Remuneration of Management Team
  The Company paid remuneration of 16.44 million baht and 17.03 million baht to the management team 
in in 2012 and 2013 respectively. The remuneration includes salary, bonus and other welfares.

Salary

Bonus

Other Welfares

Total

6

6

6

10,342,360.00

2,176,270.00

4,516,736.09

17,035,366.09

9,851,940.00

2,363,685.00

4,224,638.07

16,440,263.07

                                            Year 2012                            Year 2013

6

6

6

   Other remunerations
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the Year 2013 on 26th March 2013 had a resolution to approved 

the Company to issue new 5,500,000 ordinary shares to be offered to Directors and employees of the Company at a 
QSJDF�FRVBM�UP�UIF�PGGFSJOH�QSJDF�UP�UIF�QVCMJD�BOE�BU�UIF�TBNF�UJNF�PG�UIF�*10��%FUBJMT�PG�BMMPDBUJPO�PG�UIF�OFXMZ�JTTVFE�
shares to the Directors and Executives are as follows 

No. of the 
Executives 
(Person)

No. of the 
Executives 
(Person)

Remuneration
(Baht)

Remuneration
(Baht)
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Corporate Governance
The Company considers good corporate governance to be important as it is a vital mechanism that can lead the 

$PNQBOZ�UP�FGGFDUJWF�BOE�USBOTQBSFOU�NBOBHFNFOU��5IJT�XJMM�DSFBUF�USVTU�BOE�DPOÇEFODF�BNPOH�TIBSFIPMEFST
�JOWFTUPST
�
stakeholders and all concerned parties. Good corporate governance is a tool to add value, create competitiveness 
as well as promote sustainable growth of the company in the long run.

Chapter 1  The Rights of Shareholders

The Company realizes and gives importance to various basic rights of the shareholders, such as to buy, sell or transfer 
TIBSFT��UP�PCUBJO�SFMFWBOU�BOE�BEFRVBUF�JOGPSNBUJPO�PO�UIF�$PNQBOZ��UP�QBSUJDJQBUF�BOE�WPUF�JO�UIF�TIBSFIPMEFSTk�NFFUJOHT�
to elect or remove Directors of the Company, to appoint the external auditor, to make decisions on important issues, such 
as dividend payment, amend of the Company’s Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and increase or 
decrease of capital etc.

Apart from the various basic rights of the shareholders mentioned above, the Company implemented many actions to 
promote and facilitate the exercise of the shareholders’ rights, as follows 
1. The Company sent an invitation notice to the shareholders at least 7 days before the meeting date or within the 
QFSJPE�TQFDJÇFE�CZ�UIF�4&$�PS�4&5��5IF�OPUJDF�XPVME�JOGPSN�UIF�EBUF
�UJNF
�QMBDF�BOE�BHFOEB�PG�UIF�NFFUJOH�BOE�
opinions of the Board of Directors as well as comprehensive information relating to agenda to be decided in the meeting.
2. In the case where the shareholders are unable to attend the meeting, they are entitled to appoint any person or an 
independent director as their proxy, using the proxy forms, enclosed with the notice of the meeting, to join the meeting 
and vote on their behalf. 
3. The Company provides the shareholders with an opportunity to ask, express their opinions and suggestions freely 
during the meeting. 

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 

4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

8. Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

9. Mrs. Duangnapa 

10. Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

11. Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant

Chairman of the Board and Chairman of

Audit Committee 

Director 

Director

Director and Managing Director

Director and Vice President – Operations

Independent Director and Member of 

the Audit Committee

Independent Director and Member of 

the Audit Committee

Vice President – Accounting & Finance

Assistant Vice President – Product Management 

Senior Manager – Engineering and Service 

Senior Manager – Retail 1

7.27

5.45

5.45

5.45

5.45

5.45

5.45

5.45

2.18

1.82

2.18

400,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

120,000

100,000

120,000

Name-Surname   Position
Number of 

Allotted Shares

Percentage of the 

Total Shares being 

offered to Directors 

and Employees
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Chapter 2 The Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

���5IF�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST�IBT�B�QPMJDZ�UP�QSPNPUF�UIF�FRVJUBCMF�
treatment to every individual shareholder, whether Director 
or non-Director, Thai or foreign, major or minor, to ensure 
FRVBMJUZ�BOE�GBJSOFTT��"GUFS�UIF�*10�BOE�CFDBNF�B�MJTUFE�
company on the SET, the Company has a policy to increase 
alternatives for shareholders, who cannot attend the `meeting 
in person, to appoint an independent director or other 
individual to attend a meeting and cast vote on their behalf 
as well as offer opportunity for shareholders to nominate 
persons to serve as directors in advance within a reasonable 
time. 

The meeting will be proceeded according to regulations 
of the Company and agenda. Details of each agenda for 
consideration will be presented to the meeting thoroughly 
and comprehensively. Moreover, the meeting will not include 
BEEJUJPOBM�BHFOEB�XJUIPVU�QSJPS�OPUJÇDBUJPO�UP�TIBSFIPMEFST�
unnecessarily, especially important agenda that shareholders 
need to take time to study before making a decision.

The Board of Directors has taken measures to prevent 
wrongful use of inside information (Insider Trading) of 
individuals involved, such as Directors, executives and
employees as well as their spouses and immature children. 
The Board also imposes penalties on disclosing of Company’s 
EBUF�PS�VTJOH�UIF�JOGPSNBUJPO�GPS�QFSTPOBM�CFOFÇU�BDDPSEJOH�UP�
Anti Insider Trading Policy and educates Directors and 
executives of the Company about their obligation to report 
their holding of the Company’s securities or their spouses and 
immature children and change in the holding of the Company’s 
securities to the SEC according to Section 59 of Securities 
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535

Chapter 3  The Role of Stakeholders

The Company respects the rights of all stakeholders 
and treated them fairly as follows:

    1 Employees: The Company aims to provide both skill 
development and training to employees on continuous basis 
as we realize that all employees are one of the key fac-
tors that contribute to success, progression and sustainable 
growth of the Company. Moreover, the Company also treats 
BOE�QSPWJEFT�SJHIUT�UP�BMM�FNQMPZFFT�GBJSMZ�BOE�FRVBMMZ�
    2. Business: Partners and Creditors: The Company 
adheres to good business practice and strictly complies with 
commercial terms and/or agreements with business partners 
BOE�DSFEJUPST�XJUI�SFHBSE�UP�FRVBMJUZ�BOE�NVUVBM�CFOFÇU�BT�
well as develops tighter relationship with partners.

    3. Customers: The Company strives to achieve customers’ 
TBUJTGBDUJPO�BOE�DPOÇEFODF�CZ�LFFQ�PO�JNQSPWJOH�QSPEVDUT�
and services as well as maintaining good relationships, 
integrity and fairness.

    4. Competitors: The Company treats competitors in 
accordance with international standard under legal 
frameworks on fair trade competition, adheres on conduct 
business with fair and good ethics and does not have 
B�QPMJDZ�UP�BDRVJSF�JOGPSNBUJPO�PG�DPNQFUJUPST�JMMFHBMMZ�
and contrary to ethics

    5. Communities and Society: The Company realizes 
its responsibilities towards the communities and society by 
conducting activities and participating in social services 
such as provide educational activities for instance.  

Chapter 4 Disclosure and Transparency
   The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of accurate 
BOE�USBOTQBSFOU�EJTDMPTVSF�PG�JOGPSNBUJPO
�CPUI�ÇOBODJBM�BOE�
non-financial, as stipulated by the regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange 
PG�5IBJMBOE
�BT�XFMM�BT�PUIFS�TJHOJÇDBOU�JOGPSNBUJPO�UIBU�NBZ�
BGGFDU�UIF�QSJDF�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�TFDVSJUJFT�BOE�JOÈVFODF�UIF�
decision-making process of investors and stakeholders. This is 
UP�FOBCMF�SFMBUFE�QBSUJFT�UP�MFBSO�JOGPSNBUJPO�FRVBMMZ��"GUFS�UIF�
IPO and became a listed company on the SET, the Company 
disseminates information on the Company to the shareholders, 
investors and general public through various channels of the 
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Company’s website.  

4. After the meeting, the Company would make minutes of 
the meeting which record all and accurate details of the 
meeting so that the shareholders can verify its accuracy.

   In addition, shareholders will receive information through other 
channels including electronic media of SET, the Company’s 
website, announcements in Newspapers according to the 
Public Limited Company Act. In this regard, the Company 
BMTP�IBT�B�QPMJDZ�UP�SFRVFTU�UIF�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST
�
especially Chairman of Committees such as Audit 
Committee to jointly attend the shareholders’ meeting in 
PSEFS�UP�QSPWJEF�DMBSJÇDBUJPOT�PS�BOTXFST�UP�JORVJSJFT�PG�UIF�
shareholders in the meeting.
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Chapter 5 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Structure of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors comprises of 
knowledgeable and competent persons with experiences 
in management level from various organizations so that 
they can utilize their experience and expertise to develop 
policy and business direction of the Company effectively 
BOE�CSJOH�VUNPTU�CFOFÇUT�UP�UIF�$PNQBOZ�BOE�TIBSFIPMEFST��
Regarding this, the Board of Directors plays a major role 
in determining policy and overview of the organization, 
regulating, monitoring and evaluating performance of the 
management and operations of the Company to be in 
accordance with the plan.

The structure of Board of Directors consists of one-third 
of Independent Director. The Board composes of 7 directors, 
2 of whom are managing directors and 5 non-managing 
directors (including Chairman of the Board) and 3 Audit 
Committees. In addition, the Board of Directors also 
appointed various committees to assist in the operations 
of the Company.

1.1 The Company’s Board of Management consists 
of 4 managing directors who determine business guidelines 
and strategies to be in accordance with the objectives set 
by the Board of Directors and facilitate the administration.

1.2 The Audit Committee comprises of 3 members to 
QFSGPSN�TQFDJÇD�EVUJFT�BOE�QSPQPTF�JTTVFT�UP�UIF�#PBSE�PG�

Directors for consideration and acknowledgement. The Audit 
Committee has the rights and duties as set out in the Scope 
of Responsibilities of the Audit Committee. At least one of 
the members of the Audit Committee must be knowledgeable 
and experienced enough to be able to review the reliability 
PG�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT

The Board of Directors has a policy which states 
that Chairman and Managing Director must not be the same 
person in order to separate their responsibilities between 
policy setting, supervision and management of daily operation. 
Regarding this, the Company has clearly distinguished the 
roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors from 
those of management. The Board of Directors is responsible 
for setting policies and supervising the performance of the 
management. Meanwhile, the management is responsible for 
managing the Company’s operations in line with the policies.

2. Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

The Company stipulates that the Board of Directors 
shall comply with Code of Best Practices for directors of 
listed company under the guidelines of the SET. The Board 
must understand and be aware of their roles and 
responsibilities as well as carry out their assignment in 
accordance with laws, objectives, regulations of the Company 
and resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting with honesty, 
integrity, taking into account the interests of the Company 
and shareholders. Regarding this, the Board of Directors 
would act as the policymaker who determine business 
targets operating plans and budgets of the Company as 
well as supervise the management team to implement the 
CVTJOFTT� BDDPSEJOH� UP� UIF� TQFDJÇFE� QPMJDJFT
� QMBOT� BOE�
CVEHFUT�FGGFDUJWFMZ�BOE�FèDJFOUMZ�GPS�VUNPTU�CFOFÇU�PG�UIF�
Company and shareholders.

3. Board of Directors’ Meetings
The Board of Directors has a policy that the Board of 

Directors shall hold a meeting at least once every 3 months. 
In addition, a special meeting can be called if it is deemed 
OFDFTTBSZ��"HFOEB� JUFNT�TIBMM�CF�DMFBSMZ�EFÇOFE�BOE� UIF�
meeting documents are sent 7 days in advance to allow 
TVèDJFOU�UJNF�GPS�UIFJS�SFWJFX�CZ�UIF�EJSFDUPST�QSJPS�UP�UIF�
meeting. Each meeting is recorded and the minutes together 
with the approved documents are stored as reference and 
for future inspection.

4. Remuneration of Directors and Management Team

The Company has a policy to remunerate Directors and 
management team at an appropriate level which is 
TVèDJFOU� UP�BUUSBDU� UIF�%JSFDUPST�BOE�NBOBHFNFOU� UFBN�

   The Board of Directors is responsible for the accuracy,
DPNQMFUFOFTT�BOE�SBUJPOBMJUZ�PG�DPOTPMJEBUFE�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
of the Company which are reported in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles and prepared according to on 
the appropriate accounting policy with consistency and 
BEFRVBUF�EJTDMPTVSFT�JO�UIF�OPUFT�JO�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��
In addition, the Board of Directors will maintain effective 
internal control system to ensure, with reasonably, that the 
BDDPVOUJOH�SFDPSET�BSF�BDDVSBUF
�DPNQMFUF
�BOE�TVèDJFOU��
In order to identify weaknesses and prevent fraud or abnormal 
PQFSBUJPO�XIJDI�DSFBUF�TJHOJÇDBOU�BEWFSTF�JNQBDU�PO�UIF�
business, the Company set up Audit Committee, which 
consists of members who are not director of the Company, 
UP�BVEJU�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUT
�SFMBUFE�USBOTBDUJPOT�BOE�JOUFSOBM�
control. The Audit Committee would report directly to the 
Board of Directors.

   As for investor relations, the Company has not yet 
TFU�VQ�B�TQFDJÇD�VOJU�GPS�UIJT�QVSQPTF�CVU�IBT�BTTJHOFE�
.BOBHJOH�%JSFDUPS�UP�TQFDJÇDBMMZ�IBOEMF�JOWFTUPS�SFMBUJPOT�
with whom investors can contact and provide complete, 
accurate and thorough information to investors, analysts 
and other related agencies.
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with the Company. The remuneration is at comparative 
rates when compare to other companies’ remuneration 
within the same industry. Factors to be considered include 
experience, duties, roles and responsibilities of the Directors. 
Moreover, the remuneration of the Directors must be approved 
by the general meeting of shareholders. Meanwhile, remuneration 
of management team must comply with the principles 
and policies set by the Board of Directors, which is also 
based on obligations, responsibilities and performance of 
each management as well as the operating results of the 
Company. 

5. Development of Directors and Management Team

   The Board of Directors has set up policies to promote 
and support training and education to the related parties in 
the governance of the Company, including Directors, Audit 
Committee, management team and Corporate Secretary in 
order to continuous enhance their effectiveness, especially 
training courses of Thai Institute of Directors Association 
(IOD).

Supervision on Inside Information Utilization
1. Directors, management and employees are disallowed to 
EJTDMPTF�PS�UBLF�BEWBOUBHF�PG�DPOÇEFOUJBM�BOE�PS�JOUFSOBM�
JOGPSNBUJPO�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�GPS�UIF�CFOFÇUT�PG�UIFNTFMWFT�
or any other person, whether directly or indirectly.

2. Directors, management and employees of the Company 
as well as their spouses and immature children are prohibited 
from using internal information of the Company, that has 
or may have an impact on the price of the securities of 
the Company and which has not been disclosed to the 
public, to buy, sell, offer for sale, or persuade others to 
buy, sell or offer for sale of securities of the Company, 
whether directly or indirectly before the information is revealed 
UP�UIF�QVCMJD
�XIFUIFS�TVDI�BDUJPO�JT�EPOF�GPS�UIF�CFOFÇU�
of themselves or others or allow others to do so for their 
CFOFÇUT��7JPMBUPST�XJMM�CF�QVOJTIFE�BDDPSEJOH�UP�EJTDJQMJOBSZ�
BDUJPO�TQFDJÇFE�CZ�UIF�$PNQBOZ�

3. The Company has informed management team to 
understand and acknowledge their obligation to report their 
holding of the Company’s securities or their spouses and 
immature children and change in the holding of the Company’s 
securities to the SEC according to Section 59 of Securities 
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535

4. Directors, management and employees of the Company 
as well as their spouses and immature children are 
prohibited from trading the Company’s securities for 1 

month prior to the public disclosure of the Company’s 
ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
����3FHBSEJOH�UIJT
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�IBT�OPUJÇFE�UIF�%JSFDUPST
�
management team and employees to acknowledge the 
BCPWF�NFOUJPOFE�SFRVJSFNFOUT�

Human Resource Development Policy
The company places great emphasis on training and 

development of employees and established a training division 
to particularly handle training for employees. The objectives 
are to develop specialized and technical knowledge, skills 
and experience of employees.  These knowledge are the 
cornerstone of human development, allowing them perform 
assignments effectively and prepare the employees towards 
their career goals. This process will, in turn, strengthen 
operations of the Company.
The Company is providing the following trainings to employees: 

Training Course for New Employees: to prepare the employees 
for their new workplace
1. New employees’ orientation to provide information about 
the Company;
2. Provide sales skills training including customer service 
UFDIOJRVFT�BOE�UFDIOJRVFT�GPS�DSFBUJOH�CFUUFS�FYQFSJFODF�GPS�
customers;
3. Products knowledge and demonstrations including knowl-
edge on product innovation;
4. Training from real situations
Advance Training Course: to review knowledge for employ-
ees in each position
���n�1SPWJEF�USBJOJOH�GPS�UIF�USBJOJOH�TUBGGT
���n�1SPWJEF�USBJOJOH�GPS�DBTIJFST
���n�1SPWJEF�USBJOJOH�GPS�EFNPOTUSBUJOH�TUBGGT
    Besides, the Company also encourages employees to 
UBLF�PVUTJEF�USBJOJOH�DPVSTFT
�BOE�TJU�GPS�DFSUJÇDBUJPO�FYBN�
held by brand owners, such as Apple, in order to develop 
TQFDJÇD� TLJMMT� JO� UIFJS� QSPGFTTJPO� DPOUJOVPVTMZ�� 5IJT�XPVME�
improve competitiveness of the Company.

Related Transactions
List of related business, relationship, data of related 

transaction, including pricing policy based on trade trans-
BDUJPOT�BSF�EJTDMPTFE�JO�UIF�OPUFT�UP�UIF�BOOVBM�ÇOBODJBM�
statements ended 31st December 2013 under Item 7 of 
Notes to the Financial Statements: Transactions with related 
parties. In this regard, the Company would implement the 
following policy
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Necessity and Reasonableness of the Related Transaction
  The Audit Committee of the Company has considered 

information of related transactions and acknowledged that 
the transactions are necessary and that the transactions are 
made with reasonableness with purpose to create utmost 
CFOFÇU�GPS�UIF�$PNQBOZ�BOE�JO�MJOF�XJUI�OPSNBM�DPVSTF�PG�
business.

The Process of Approving the Transaction
     The Company has taken measures when making related 
transactions with individuals who may have conflict of 
JOUFSFTUT�XJUI�UIF�$PNQBOZ�CZ�SFRVFTUJOH�UIF�"VEJU�$PNNJUUFF�
to make comments regarding the necessity of the transactions, 
UIF� KVTUJÇDBUJPO�BOE�BQQSPQSJBUFOFTT�PG� UIF�DPTUT�PG� UIF�
transactions by considering conditions in accordance with 
normal course of business based on appropriate market 
price and conditions. In case that the Audit Committee 
does not have expertise to consider the related transactions, 
UIF�$PNQBOZ�TIBMM�BTTJHO�JOEJWJEVBMT�XJUI�TQFDJÇD�FYQFSUJTF
�
TVDI�BT�BVEJUPST
�BQQSBJTFST�PS�MFHBM�PèDF
�XIP�BSF�JOEF-
pendent from the Company and persons who may have 
DPOÈJDUT�PG� JOUFSFTUT�XJUI�UIF�$PNQBOZ
� UP�DPNNFOU�PO�
such transactions so as to the Audit Committee may make 
consideration based on the comments and propose to the 
Board of Directors’ Meeting or shareholders’ meeting, as the 
case may be.

   In addition, the Company has stipulated that the 
management team or stakeholders, who may have direct or 
JOEJSFDU�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�JO�UIBU�SFMBUFE�USBOTBDUJPO
�BSF�OPU�
allowed to take part in the approval of such item. Moreover, 
the Board of Directors shall ensure that the Company 
complies with the laws on securities and exchanges, 
SFHVMBUJPOT
�BOOPVODFNFOUT�BOE�OPUJÇDBUJPOT�JTTVFE�CZ�UIF�
4&$�BT�XFMM�BT�SFRVJSFNFOUT�PO�UIF�EJTDMPTVSF�PG�SFMBUFE�
QBSUZ�USBOTBDUJPOT
�BDRVJTJUJPO�PS�EJTQPTJUJPO�PG�JNQPSUBOU�
assets of the Company or its subsidiaries, and adhere to 
generally accepted accounting principles set by the 
'FEFSBUJPO� PG� "DDPVOUJOH�1SPGFTTJPOT� BOE�$FSUJÇFE�1VCMJD�
Accountant of Thailand. The transaction would be disclosed 
JO�UIF�OPUFT�UP�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�UIBU�IBWF�CFFO�BVEJUFE�
or reviewed by the auditors of the Company.

Trends of Related Transactions in the Future
The Company may continue to execute related transaction 

in the future which shall be in line with normal course of 
business based on appropriate market price and conditions. 
In this regard, the Company would stipulate a clear policy 
on related transactions which have to be in line with normal 
course of business as similar to a transaction for an unrelated 

individual and/or company such as selling and buying of 
products, rendering or providing services etc. The related 
transactions are only made out of necessary to run business 
PQFSBUJPO�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�BOE�GPS�UIF�CFOFÇU�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ��
Regarding this, the Audit Committee would monitor whether 
the transactions are complied with the rules and give opinions 
PO�SFBTPOBCMFOFTT�PG�UIF�USBOTBDUJPOT�PO�RVBSUFSMZ�CBTJT��

For related transactions that are not in the ordinary course 
of business which may occur in the future, the Company 
would arrange the Audit Committee to review guidelines and 
give comments on appropriateness of the transactions before 
the Company enters into that transactions. The implementation 
shall be made in accordance with the measures and 
QSPDFEVSFT�BT�TQFDJÇFE�BCPWF��/POFUIFMFTT
�SFMBUFE�USBOTBDUJPOT�
NBZ�DBVTF�DPOÈJDUT�PG�JOUFSFTU�JO�UIF�GVUVSF��)FODF
�UIF�#PBSE�
of Directors shall comply with the laws on securities and 
FYDIBOHFT
�SFHVMBUJPOT
�BOOPVODFNFOUT�BOE�OPUJÇDBUJPOT�JTTVFE�
CZ�UIF�4&$�BT�XFMM�BT�SFRVJSFNFOUT�PO�UIF�EJTDMPTVSF�PG�SFMBUFE�
QBSUZ�USBOTBDUJPOT
�BDRVJTJUJPO�PS�EJTQPTJUJPO�PG�JNQPSUBOU�
assets of the Company or its subsidiaries, and adhere to 
generally accepted accounting principles set by the Federation 
PG�"DDPVOUJOH�1SPGFTTJPOT�BOE�$FSUJÇFE�1VCMJD�"DDPVOUBOU�PG�
Thailand.
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Employees 
    As at 31 December 2013, the Company employs a total of 335 employees (exclusive of 6 executives), which can 
be divided into 350 full time employees and 15 part time employees with the details as follows: 

1. Accounting

2. Finance

3. Marketing

4. Sales

5. Retail 1 , 2

6. Engineering & Service 

7. Product Management

8. Business Development

9.  Human Resource

10. Training 

11. Administration 

12. Internal Audit

 Total

13

10

5

28

214

20

27

4

3

3

6

2

335

 
Department  Full Time Employee 

(Person) 

Part Time Employee 

(Person) 
Total

-

-

-

-

15

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15

13

10

5

28

229

20

27

4

3

3

6

2

350
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Internal Controls
The Company recognizes the importance of internal 

controls, which are necessary to help prevent harm that may 
result from the operation and exploitation of the executives 
and employees.

During the meeting of the Board of Directors on 10 
February, 2014, the Audit Committee, together with 
management of the Company, reviewed and evaluated the 
internal control systems utilized in 2013 in order to assess 
UIF�BEFRVBDZ�PG�UIF�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�TZTUFNT�FTUBCMJTIFE�
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  The 
Audit Committee reported, freely and independently, that 
UIFZ�GPVOE�OP�DPOÈJDUT���5IF�JNQPSUBOU� JUFNT�EJTDVTTFE�
are as follows:

1. Organization Control and Environment Measure
2. Risk Management Measure
3. Management Control Activities 
4. Information and Communication Systems Measure
5. Monitoring

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has an 
BEFRVBUF� TZTUFN� PG� JOUFSOBM� DPOUSPMT� UP� BEESFTT� UIF� ÇWF�
areas of operation stated above, and that they will be effec-
tive in preventing corruption and wrongful use of company 
assets.

36
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List of Directors and Controlling 
Persons in the Company 

Name

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Mr. Min Intanate 
Mr. Narathorn Wongvises
Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol
Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol
Mr. Sujin Suwannagate
Mrs. Susama Rativanich 
Mr. Pheerapol Amphan
Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol 
Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang
Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant 

1. S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.
2. S P V Advance Corporation Limited
3. Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
4. Core and Peak Co., Ltd.
5. D2 Systems Co., Ltd.
6. D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
7. Siam City Leasing And Factoring Public
  Company Limited
8. Business Online Public Company Limited
9. Probusiness Development Co., Ltd.
10. Pro Multi Service Co., Ltd.
11. Pro Management Solution Co., Ltd.
12. PCC International Co., Ltd.
����1BO�1BDJÇD�$POTVMUBOU�$P�
�-UE�
14. Master Link Co., Ltd.

15. Master Vision Co., Ltd.
16. Lease It Public Company Limited
����7FOUVSF�1SPÇMF�$P�
�-UE�
18. ACONSULTANT Co., Ltd.
19. ANEW Corporation Ltd.
20. ANET Co., Ltd.
21. ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
22. S.P.N. Enterprises Co., Ltd.
23. SVOA Public Company Limited
24. AR Elastomer Co., Ltd.
25. A.R. Accounting Consultant Co., Ltd.
26. ARIT Co., Ltd.
27. ARIPPublic Company Limited
28. IT City Public Company Limited

X,AC
/,C
/
/,//,///
/,//,*
/,AC
/,AC
//,*
**
***
***

1

/
/

2

/
/

/

3

/

4

/,C

5

/

6

X

7

/

8

/,C

9

/

10

/

11

/

13

/

14

/

15

/

16

/

17

/

18

/

19

/

20

/

21

/

24

/

25

/

26

/

27

/

28

/,C

23

/,///

22

/

12

X

Related Company

Note           X = Chairman of the Board C = Executive Chairman        AC = Audit Committee
  /  = Director   // = Executive Committee       /// = Managing Director
  *  = Vice President  ** = Assistant Vice President    *** = Senior Manager

Related Company :
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List of related business, relationship, data of related 
transaction, including pricing policy based on trade transactions 
are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements 
ended 31st December 2013 under Item 7 of Notes to the 
Financial Statements: Transactions with related parties. In this 
regard, the Company would implement the following policy

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Related Transaction
The Audit Committee of the Company has considered 

information of related transactions and acknowledged that 
the transactions are necessary and that the transactions are 
made with reasonableness with purpose to create utmost 
benefit for the Company and in line with normal course of 
business.

The Process of Approving the Transaction
The Company has taken measures when making related 

transactions with individuals who may have conflict of interests 
with the Company by requesting the Audit Committee to 
make comments regarding the necessity of the transactions, 
the justification and appropriateness of the costs of the 
transactions by considering conditions in accordance with 
normal course of business based on appropriate market price 
and conditions. In case that the Audit Committee does not 
have expertise to consider the related transactions, the Company 
shall assign individuals with specific expertise, such as auditors, 
appraisers or legal office, who are independent from the 
Company and persons who may have conflicts of interests 
with the Company, to comment on such transactions so as to 
the Audit Committee may make consideration based on the 
comments and propose to the Board of Directors’ Meeting or 
shareholders’ meeting, as the case may be.

In addition, the Company has stipulated that the management 
team or stakeholders, who may have direct or indirect conflict 
of interest in that related transaction, are not allowed to take 
part in the approval of such item. Moreover, the Board of 
Directors shall ensure that the Company complies with the 
laws on securities and exchanges, regulations, announcements 
and notifications issued by the SEC as well as requirements 
on the disclosure of related party transactions, acquisition or 
disposition of important assets of the Company or its subsidiaries, 
and adhere to generally accepted accounting principles set 
by the Federation of Accounting Professions and Certified 
Public Accountant of Thailand. The transaction would be disclosed 
in the notes to financial statements that have been audited or 
reviewed by the auditors of the Company.

Trends of Related Transactions in the Future
The Company may continue to execute related transaction in 

the future which shall be in line with normal course of business 
based on appropriate market price and conditions. In this
regard, the Company would stipulate a clear policy on related 
transactions which have to be in line with normal course 
of business as similar to a transaction for an unrelated individual 
and/or company such as selling and buying of products, rendering 
or providing services etc. The related transactions are only 
made out of necessary to run business operation of the Company 
and for the benefit of the Company. Regarding this, the Audit 
Committee would monitor whether the transactions are complied 
with the rules and give opinions on reasonableness of the 
transactions on quarterly basis.

For related transactions that are not in the ordinary course 
of business which may occur in the future, the Company 
would arrange the Audit Committee to review guidelines and 
give comments on appropriateness of the transactions before 
the Company enters into that transactions. The implementa-
tion shall be made in accordance with the measures and 
procedures as specified above. Nonetheless, related transac-
tions may cause conflicts of interest in the future. Hence, the 
Board of Directors shall comply with the laws on securities 
and exchanges, regulations, announcements and notifications 
issued by the SEC as well as requirements on the disclo-
sure of related party transactions, acquisition or disposition 
of important assets of the Company or its subsidiaries, and 
adhere to generally accepted accounting principles set by 
the Federation of Accounting Professions and Certified Public 
Accountant of Thailand. 

Related Transactions
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
An overview of operang results

The total revenue of the company in the past 2 years increased from 2,219.92 million Baht in 2011 to 2,520.08 million Baht in 
2012, representing ng a growth of 13.52%. In 2012, 99.37% of total revenue is product sale, the remaining 0.09% is from service. 
In 2013 the total revenue is 2,304.85 million Baht, a decrease from 2012 by 215.23 million Baht, or 8.54%. Total revenue in 2013, 
98.80% of total revenue comes from product sales, 0.85% from service and the remaining 0.35% is from other sources.

In 2011 and 2012, revenue from Apple products was 1,994.97 and 2318.5 millions Baht accordingly, a 16.22% growth 
from 2011. Revenues from iPhone 5 and iPad mini signi+cantly contributed in the growth. In 2013, revenue from Apple 
products declined to 2,081.01 millions Baht, a decrease by 10.24% from previous year due to the market trends, where 
computers are being replaced with mobile devices. As a result, the Company turns to focus on Corporate customers, which 
accounted up to 17.48% and 21.98% of total revenue in 2012 and 2013 accordingly.

The revenue from selling non-Apple branded products was 212.28 and 185.68 millions Baht in 2011 and 2012, a decrease 
of 12.53% year-over-year. This is due to the Company focuses on selling high price and quality products. In addi onal, the 
decreased in sales is also due to weaker purchase from the digital-graphics produc on segment. In year 2012 and 2013, 
revenue from non-Apple branded products increased from 185.68 millions Baht to 196.04 millions Baht, which is a 5.58% 
increase. The growth in sales is due to new product launched such as, Epson printers, promo ons on exis ng Epson printer 
models, and new so2ware for printers. Furthermore, sales of computer products to corporate customers were also increased.

Revenues from Apple Products

Revenues from Non-Apple Products 

Total Revenues from Sales 

Service Income 

Other Income 

Total Revenues

1,994.97 

212.28 

2,207.25 

12.21

0.45

2,219.91

89.87

9.56 

99.43 

0.55 

0.02 

100.00 

2,318.51

185.68 

2,504.19 

13.55

2.34

2,520.08 

92.00 

7.37 

99.37 

0.54 

0.09 

100.00 

2,081.01 

196.04 

2,277.05 

19.62

8.18

2,304.85 

90.29 

8.51 

98.79 

0.85 

0.35 

100.00 

 
  2013

Million
 Baht

Million
 Baht

Million
 BahtPercent Percent Percent

  2012  2011

Revanues



Annual Report 2013

40

Revenue from services grows 10.95% from year 2011 and 2013, from 12.21 to 13.55 millions Baht. 

Revenue from services was 12.21 and 13.55 millions Baht in 2011 and 2013, a 10.95% increase. Majority of services 
revenue comes from SmartBar, an authorized Apple product service center. Revenue from service increased by 44.80% from 
year 2012 to 2013 with total revenue of 13.55 and 19.62 millions Baht accordingly.

In year 2011, the Company had net pro+t of 57.49 millions Baht (2.59%) and 45.87 million Baht (1.78%) in 2012. The 
decrease in net margin is due to increased cost of sales. These incremental are from increased adver sing ac vi es, sales 
promo ons, outsourcing services, and space rental for product promo onal sales. In year 2013, the Company obtained net 
pro+t of 16.25 million Baht, a 0.71% of total revenue. During the +rst three quarters of 2013, due to the popularity of iPad 
mini, the revenue from iPad mini is substan al hence yield the Company a lower pro+t margin then full-sized iPad models. 
Apple typically announce new products in the third and forth quarter. However, in 2013, Apple product announcement only 
occurred in the forth quarter; including iPhone 5s, iPhone 5c, and iPad Air. The supply for these models arrived Thailand in 
late October and November. This results in a lower net pro+t for year 2013 then the previous year.

Revenues from Apple Products

 - Computer 

 - iOS Devices

 - Apple Accessories

Total

Total Revenues from Non-Apple Products 

 - Accessories

 - Professional Graphics

 - Software 

 - Compute

Total

Total Revenues from Sales 

1,298.19 

621.69 

75.09 

1,994.97 

159.22 

44.70 

7.60 

0.76 

212.28 

2,207.25 

58.48 

28.01 

3.38 

89.87

7.17 

2.01 

0.34 

0.03 

9.56 

99.43 

846.65 

1,380.08 

91.78 

2,318.50

133.90 

29.47 

20.35 

1.96 

185.68 

2,504.19 

33.60 

54.76 

3.64 

92.00 

5.31 

1.17 

0.81 

0.08 

7.37 

99.37 

640.11 

1,315.11 

125.79 

2,081.01 

134.52 

44.51 

15.25 

1.76 

196.04 

2,277.05 

27.77 

57.06 

5.46 

90.29 

5.84 

1.93 

0.66 

0.08 

8.51 

98.79 

 

Revenues from Sales 

  2013  2012  2011

Million
 Baht

Million
 Baht

Million
 BahtPercent Percent Percent
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   As of end of December 2013, the Company posses total asset of 419.12 mil-
lion Baht, comprise of 11.95% are cash or cash equivalents, 29.25% are trade and other 
receivables, 37.42% are inventory, 9.46% are equipment. Total liabili es is 149.25 million 
Baht, in which 96.19% of total liabili es are current liabili es. Equity shares valued at 269.87 
million Baht, an increase of 48.07 million Baht compared to 2012. This is due to the 88 
million Baht dividend paid and the Company increased its capital from 120 to 200 millions 
Baht in 2013. The premium on ordinary shares was 39.91 million Baht, obtained from IPO 
sold to the public. Debt to equity of shareholder, as of 31 December 2013, was decreased 
from 1.37 to 0.55 per share due to payments made to Apple in order to purchase new 
products in the end of year period. As a result, the signi+cant decrease in debt to equity 
of shareholder re?ects a strong capital structure.

Financial Position

41
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibility
for Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors is aware of their duties and responsibilities as directors of a company listed on the Stock Exchange 
of Thailand, which are: to supervise the financial reporting, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, to 
create appropriate accounting policies, and to exercise caution in the preparation of financial reports, including the disclosure 
of sensitive information.

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review financial reports, internal control systems, internal audits, 
as well as the creation and distribution of interim reports.  The opinions of the Audit committee have been included in this 
annual report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the internal control systems of the Company are at the appropriate level.  The 
Board is confident that the financial statements of the Company are reliable, that they conform to generally accepted accounting 
practices, and comply with all appropriate rules and regulations.

(Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse)                (Mr. Min Intanate)
 Chairman of the Board         Executive Chairman
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Audit Committee’s Report  

The Audit Committee of SPVI Public Company Limited is appointed by the Board of Directors, consists of three inde-
QFOEFOU�CPBSE�NFNCFST
�XIPTF�LOPXMFEHF�BOE�RVBMJÇDBUJPOT�BSF�DPNQMJFE�XJUI�UIF�EJSFDUJWF�JTTVFE�CZ�5IF�0èDF�
of The Securities and Exchange Commission. The current committee members are:

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse ; Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Sujin Suwannagate ; Member of the Audit Committee
Mrs. Susama Rativanich ; Member of the Audit Committee

Ms. Yupa Benchawikai ; Manager of the Internal Audit Department, serves as secretary of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has performed the duty as assigned by the Board of Director, in compliance with the charter 
of auditing. In 2013, there are 4 committee meetings, attended by all members together with the management, internal 
BVEJUPST
�BOE�FYUFSOBM�BVEJUPST�BT�SFRVJSFE��5IF�EFUBJMT�PG�NFFUJOHT�TVNNBSJ[FE�CFMPX
�XFSF�SFQPSUFE�RVBSUFSMZ�UP�UIF�
Board of Directors.

2VBSUFSMZ
�)BMG�:FBSMZ�BOE�"OOVBMMZ�SFWJFXT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUT�XJUI�UIF�FYUFSOBM�BVEJUPST�BOE�BDDPVOU�NBOBHFNFOU�UFBN
�
including information disclosure and accounting policies, as well as the notes and suggestion by the auditors to ensure 
UIBU�UIF�DPNQBOZ�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BOE�SFQPSUT�BSF�QSFQBSFE�VOEFS�UIF�HFOFSBM�BDDFQUFE�BDDPVOUJOH�QSPDFEVSF�BOE�
UIBU�UIF�EJTDMPTVSF�TUBUFNFOUT�BSF�TVèDJFOU�BOE�SFMJBCMF
�XIJDI�UIF�BVEJUPS�IBT�TUBUFE�JO�UIF�SFQPSU�TVCNJUUFE�UP�UIF�
Board of Directors and Shareholders. The auditors have audited and freely expressed their opinions.

The Committee considered, suggested and reviewed the plan and results of the internal control audited to assess the 
BEFRVBDZ
�BQQSPQSJBUFOFTT
�BOE�FGGFDUJWFOFTT�PG�UIF�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�TZTUFNT��3FDPNNFOEBUJPOT�XFSF�JTTVFE�UP�JNQSPWF�UIF�FG-
ÇDJFODZ�PG�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�BOE�BEIFSFODF�UP�UIF�SVMFT�BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�TFU�GPSUI�CZ�UIF�$PNQBOZ��*U�JT�PVS�PQJOJPO�UIBU�
UIF�$PNQBOZ�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPMT�BOE�BVEJU�QSPDFEVSFT�BSF�BEFRVBUF�BOE�DPOUJOVJOH�UP�JNQSPWF�
5IF�$PNNJUUFF�SFWJFXFE�UIF�SFMBUFE�QBSUJFT�USBOTBDUJPOT�UIBU�NJHIU�DBVTF�B�DPOÈJDU�PG�JOUFSFTU�UP�FOTVSF�UIBU�UIFZ�DPO-
GPSN�XJUI�UIF�OPSNBM�CVTJOFTT�QSBDUJDFT�BOE�UIBU�UIFSF�BSF�OP�JUFNT�UIBU�XJMM�IBWF�B�TJHOJÇDBOU�JNQBDU�PO�UIF�$PNQBOZ
�
CBTFE�PO�UIF�BDDFQUFE�QSJODJQMFT�PG�USBOTQBSFODZ
�JODMVEJOH�UIF�TVèDJFOU�EJTDMPTVSF�PG�UIPTF�USBOTBDUJPOT�JO�DPNQMJBODF�
XJUI�UIF�SFRVJSFNFOUT�PG�UIF�4UPDL�&YDIBOHF�PG�5IBJMBOE�BOE�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�HVJEFMJOF�
The Committee monitored progress on the company practices based on the principle of good corporate governance, 
UP�FOTVSF�UIBU�UIF�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�TZTUFN�JT�FGGFDUJWF
�BEFRVBUF
�BOE�BQQSPQSJBUF�UP�UIF�DIBOHJOH�CVTJOFTT�FOWJSPONFOU�
The Committee proposed that appointment and remuneration of the Auditors, based on their knowledges, experiences and 
integrity, to the Board of Directors, for approval by the shareholders during the annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee has performed their duties as stated in the charter of audit, approved by The Board of Directors 
XJUI�QSVEFODF�BOE�JOEFQFOEFODF�BOE�IBT�DPOÇSNFE�UIBU�UIF�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST�BOE�&YFDVUJWFT�PG�UIF�DPNQBOZ�BSF�
DPNNJUUFE�UP�BDIJFWF�DPNQBOZ�HPBMT�XJUI�UIF�IJHIFTU�RVBMJUZ�PG�XPSL
�FNQIBTJ[JOH�UIF�JNQPSUBOU�PG�PQFSBUJOH�VOEFS�UIF�
effective internal control systems with good corporate governance and transparency in accordance to the guideline of 
the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

(Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse)
Chairman of Audit Committee
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*�IBWF�BVEJUFE�UIF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�4�1�7�*�1VCMJD�$PNQBOZ�-JNJUFE
�XIJDI�DPNQSJTF�UIF�TUBUFNFOUT
PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�BT�BU����%FDFNCFS�����
�BOE�UIF�SFMBUFE�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�JODPNF
�DIBOHFT�JO�TIBSFIPMEFSTk�
FRVJUZ�BOE�DBTI�ÈPXT�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�UIFO�FOEFE
�BOE�B�TVNNBSZ�PG�TJHOJÇDBOU�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDJFT�BOE�PUIFS�FYQMBOBUPSZ�
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
.BOBHFNFOU�JT�SFTQPOTJCMF�GPS�UIF�QSFQBSBUJPO�BOE�GBJS�QSFTFOUBUJPO�PG�UIFTF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JO�BDDPSEBODF�

with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�UIBU�BSF�GSFF�GSPN�NBUFSJBM�NJTTUBUFNFOU
�XIFUIFS�EVF�UP�GSBVE�PS�FSSPS�

Auditor’s Responsibility
.Z�SFTQPOTJCJMJUZ�JT�UP�FYQSFTT�BO�PQJOJPO�PO�UIFTF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�CBTFE�PO�NZ�BVEJU��*�DPOEVDUFE�NZ�BVEJU�JO�

BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�5IBJ�4UBOEBSET�PO�"VEJUJOH��5IPTF�TUBOEBSET�SFRVJSF�UIBU�*�DPNQMZ�XJUI�FUIJDBM�SFRVJSFNFOUT�BOE�QMBO�BOE�
QFSGPSN�UIF�BVEJU�UP�PCUBJO�SFBTPOBCMF�BTTVSBODF�BCPVU�XIFUIFS�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�BSF�GSFF�GSPN�NBUFSJBM�
misstatement.

"O�BVEJU�JOWPMWFT�QFSGPSNJOH�QSPDFEVSFT�UP�PCUBJO�BVEJU�FWJEFODF�BCPVU�UIF�BNPVOUT�BOE�EJTDMPTVSFT�JO�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
NJTTUBUFNFOU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�XIFUIFS�EVF�UP�GSBVE�PS�FSSPS��*O�NBLJOH�UIPTF�SJTL�BTTFTTNFOUT
�UIF�BVEJUPS�
DPOTJEFST�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�SFMFWBOU�UP�UIF�FOUJUZkT�QSFQBSBUJPO�BOE�GBJS�QSFTFOUBUJPO�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JO�PSEFS�
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting  
policies  used  and  the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
QSFTFOUBUJPO�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�*�CFMJFWF�UIBU�UIF�BVEJU�FWJEFODF�*�IBWF�PCUBJOFE�JT�TVèDJFOU�BOE�BQQSPQSJBUF�UP�
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
*O�NZ�PQJOJPO
�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�SFGFSSFE�UP�BCPWF�QSFTFOU�GBJSMZ
�JO�BMM�NBUFSJBM�SFTQFDUT
�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�PG�4�

1�7�*�1VCMJD�$PNQBOZ�-JNJUFE�BT�BU����%FDFNCFS�����
�BOE�UIFJS�ÇOBODJBM�QFSGPSNBODF�BOE�DBTI�ÈPXT�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�UIFO�
ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.  

Emphasis of matter
*�ESBX�BUUFOUJPO�UP�/PUF���UP�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�SFHBSEJOH�UIF�DIBOHF�JO�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDZ�BT�UIF�SFTVMU�PG�BEPQUJPO�

PG�5IBJ�"DDPVOUJOH�4UBOEBSE����*ODPNF�5BYFT��.Z�DPODMVTJPO�JT�OPU�RVBMJÇFE�JO�SFTQFDU�PG�UIJT�NBUUFS�

Other matter 
5IF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�4�1�7�*�1VCMJD�$PNQBOZ�-JNJUFE�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�FOEFE����%FDFNCFS������	CFGPSF�SFTUBUFNFOU
�

XFSF�BVEJUFE�CZ�BOPUIFS�BVEJUPS�PG�PVS�ÇSN�XIP�FYQSFTTFE�BO�VORVBMJÇFE�PQJOJPO�VOEFS�IFS�SFQPSU�EBUFE���.BSDI��������

Wichart Lokatekrawee
$FSUJÇFE�1VCMJD�"DDPVOUBOU�	5IBJMBOE
�/P������

&SOTU���:PVOH�0èDF�-JNJUFE
Bangkok: 10 February 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of S P V I Public Company Limited
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Assets

Current assets

$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT
Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Inventories 

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits

&RVJQNFOUT
Intangible asset - computer software

Leasehold right

Other non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

4

 
As at

31 December 2013
As at

31 December 2012

As at

1 January 2012

127,058,827

 - 

 122,168,517 

 184,068,133 

 28,830,379 

 462,125,856 

 160,000 

 40,467,931 

 1,978,219 

 8,512,059 

 9,010,035 

 2,458,354 

 62,586,598 

 524,712,454 

50,084,434

 2,000,000 

 122,577,787 

 156,844,986 

 18,678,850 

 350,186,057 

 160,000 

 39,638,191 

 8,097,945 

 8,052,675 

 9,302,324 

 3,685,426 

 68,936,561 

 419,122,618 

 154,566,526 

 - 

 55,539,545 

 141,426,765 

 33,336,429 

 384,869,265 

 160,000 

 33,449,913 

 1,075,712 

 8,971,262 

 11,545,066 

 1,428,209 

 56,630,162 

 441,499,427 

Note

5IF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�OPUFT�BSF�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��� �

(Restated)

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 

(Unit: Baht)
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As at

31 December 2013
As at

31 December 2012

As at

1 January 2012Note

5IF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�OPUFT�BSF�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��

(Restated)
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

1SPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

  Registered

  400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each

    (31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012: 

    12,000,000 ordinary shares 

    of Baht 10 each)

  Issued and fully paid up

  400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each

    (31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012: 

    12,000,000 ordinary shares 

    of Baht 10 each)

Share premium

Retained earnings

   Appropriated - statutory reserve

   Unappropriated

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

17

18

19

20

 291,171,851 

 6,059,046 

 625,088 

 297,855,985 

 5,054,135 

 5,054,135 

 302,910,120 

120,000,000

 

120,000,000 

 - 

 3,685,775 

 98,116,559 

221,802,334

524,712,454

 - 

 141,477,877 

 - 

 2,080,516 

 143,558,393 

 5,695,444 

 5,695,444 

 149,253,837 

 200,000,000 

 200,000,000 

 39,809,592 

 9,288,685 

 20,770,504 

269,868,781

419,122,618

 - 

 228,705,503 

 26,376,736 

 1,393,467 

 256,475,706 

 6,102,201 

 6,102,201 

 262,577,907 

120,000,000

 120,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 58,921,520 

178,921,520

441,499,427

 - 

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position (continued)
as at 31 December 2013 

(Unit: Baht)
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1SPÇU�PS�MPTT�
Revenues 

Sales 

Service income 

Other income 

Total revenues 

Expenses 

Costs of sales  

Costs of services 

Selling expenses 

Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

1SPÇU�CFGPSF�ÇOBODF�DPTU�BOE�JODPNF�UBY�FYQFOTFT 
Finance cost 

1SPÇU�CFGPSF�JODPNF�UBY�FYQFOTFT 
Income tax expenses 

1SPÇU�GPS�UIF�ZFBS 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 

Basic earnings per share 

1SPÇU�
 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 

21

23

24

 2,504,189,498 

 13,550,612 

 2,343,632 

 2,520,083,742 

 2,258,632,666 

 10,617,059 

 115,949,927 

 69,836,058 

 2,455,035,710 

 65,048,032 

 (5,160,541)

 59,887,491 

 (14,006,677)

 45,880,814 

 - 

 45,880,814 

0.19

240,000,000

 2,277,049,642 

 19,623,951 

 8,179,487 

 2,304,853,080 

 2,075,062,052 

 8,410,254 

 116,401,192 

 79,476,612 

 2,279,350,110 

 25,502,970 

 (4,866,302)

 20,636,668 

 (4,379,813)

 16,256,855 

 - 

 16,256,855 

0.06

278,520,548

5IF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�OPUFT�BSF�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�

 
2013 2012Note

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Restated)

(Unit: Baht)
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2013 2012

$BTI�ÈPXT�GSPN�PQFSBUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT
1SPÇU�CFGPSF�UBY
"EKVTUNFOUT�UP�SFDPODJMF�QSPÇU�CFGPSF�UBY�UP�
   net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

   Depreciation and amortisation

   Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts

   Increase in reduction of inventory to net realisable value

���(BJO�PO�EJTQPTBMT�PG�FRVJQNFOU
���-PTT�PO�XSJUF�PGG�PG�FRVJQNFOU
���1SPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
���3FWFSTBM�PG�QSPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
   Unrealised gain on exchange

   Interest income

   Interest expenses

1SPÇU�GSPN�PQFSBUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT�CFGPSF��
   changes in operating assets and liabilities

Operating assets (increase) decrease:

   Trade and other receivables

   Inventories

   Other current assets

   Other non-current assets

Operating liabilities increase (decrease):

   Trade and other payables

   Other current liabilities

$BTI�ÈPXT�GSPN�	VTFE�JO
�PQFSBUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT
Cash received from interest income

Cash paid for income tax

/FU�DBTI�ÈPXT�VTFE�JO�PQFSBUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT

 59,887,491 

 11,151,654 

 146,228 

 6,188,063 

 (303,761)

 - 

 600,403 

 (1,648,469)

 - 

 (718,140)

 1,059,072 

 76,362,541 

 (66,775,200)

 (48,829,431)

 4,506,050 

 2,535,031 

 62,466,348 

 (768,379)

 29,496,960 

 718,140 

 (35,354,512)

 (5,139,412)

 20,636,668 

 13,995,814 

 354,833 

 5,139,217 

 (206,353)

 5,445 

 641,309 

 - 

 (51,936)

 (845,778)

 2,105,198 

 41,774,417 

 (644,903)

 22,083,930 

 10,619,115 

 (292,289)

 (149,642,038)

 1,455,428 

 (74,646,340)

 726,578 

 (11,085,915)

 (85,005,677)

5IF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�OPUFT�BSF�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT���

S P V I Public Company Limited
Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Restated)

(Unit: Baht)
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$BTI�ÈPXT�GSPN�JOWFTUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT�
Increase in current investments

1SPDFFET�GSPN�EJTQPTBMT�PG�FRVJQNFOU
"DRVJTJUJPOT�PG�FRVJQNFOU
Increase in intangible assets

/FU�DBTI�ÈPXT�VTFE�JO�JOWFTUJOH�BDUJWJUJFT
$BTI�ÈPXT�GSPN�ÇOBODJOH�BDUJWJUJFT
Cash paid for interest expenses

Cash received from issuance of ordinary shares 

Dividend paid

/FU�DBTI�ÈPXT�GSPN�	VTFE�JO
�ÇOBODJOH�BDUJWJUJFT
/FU�EFDSFBTF�JO�DBTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT
$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT�BU�CFHJOOJOH�PG�ZFBS
$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT�BU�FOE�PG�ZFBS�

 - 

 401,262 

 (17,438,847)

 (1,271,630)

 (18,309,215)

 (1,059,072)

 - 

 (3,000,000)

 (4,059,072)

 (27,507,699)

 154,566,526 

 127,058,827 

 (2,000,000)

 1,492,285 

 (13,452,085)

 (6,665,708)

 (20,625,508)

 (2,105,198)

 118,761,990 

 (88,000,000)

 28,656,792 

 (76,974,393)

 127,058,827 

 50,084,434

5IF�BDDPNQBOZJOH�OPUFT�BSF�BO�JOUFHSBM�QBSU�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��

 
2013 2014

S P V I Public Company Limited
Cash flow statement (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Restated)

(Unit: Baht)

puNG P@Y

puNG P@Y
2012
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Balance as at 31 December 2011 -

   as previously reported

Cumulative effect of change in 

   accounting policy for income taxes

Balance as at 31 December 2011 -

   as restated

Dividend paid

Unappropriated retained earnings

   transferred to statutory reserve

Total comprehensive income for the year

   (restated)

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Balance as at 31 December 2012 -

   as previously reported 

Cumulative effect of change in 

   accounting policy for income taxes

Balance as at 31 December 2012 -

   as restated

Share capital issued

Dividend paid

Unappropriated retained earnings

   transferred to statutory reserve

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2013

4

26

20

4

19

26

20

 
Retained earnings

 120,000,000 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 120,000,000 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 80,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 200,000,000 

 120,000,000 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 120,000,000 

 - 

 120,000,000 

 80,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 200,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 3,685,775 

 - 

 3,685,775 

 3,685,775 

 - 

 3,685,775 

 - 

 - 

 5,602,910 

 - 

 9,288,685 

 57,493,311 

 1,428,209 

 58,921,520 

 (3,000,000)

 (3,685,775)

 45,880,814 

 98,116,559 

 95,658,205 

 2,458,354 

 98,116,559 

 - 

 (88,000,000)

 (5,602,910)

 16,256,855 

 20,770,504 

 177,493,311 

 1,428,209 

 178,921,520 

 (3,000,000)

 - 

 45,880,814 

 221,802,334 

 219,343,980 

 2,458,354 

 221,802,334 

 119,809,592 

(88,000,000)

 - 

 16,256,855 

 269,868,781 

Issued and

 paid up

share capital

Share

premium
Appropriated UnappropriatedNote Total

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)

puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y


puNG P@Y
39,809,592

puNG P@Y
39,809,592

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-

puNG P@Y
-
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1.  General information

   S P V I Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company incorporated under Thai laws on 6 January 
2011 and registered the change of its status to a public limited company under the Public Limited companies Act on 10 
April 2013 and domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is IT City Public Company Limited, a company incorporated 
in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the distribution of computers and related accessories. Its registered 
address is No. 1213/58-59 Soi Ladprao 94 Sriwara Road, Phlapphla, Wangthonglang, Bangkok.

2.  Basis of preparation
���5IF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�CFFO�QSFQBSFE�JO�BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�5IBJ�'JOBODJBM�3FQPSUJOH�4UBOEBSET�FOVODJBUFE�
under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the 
TUJQVMBUJPOT�PG�UIF�/PUJÇDBUJPO�PG�UIF�%FQBSUNFOU�PG�#VTJOFTT�%FWFMPQNFOU�EBUFE����4FQUFNCFS�����
� JTTVFE�
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
5IF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JO�5IBJ�MBOHVBHF�BSF�UIF�PèDJBM�TUBUVUPSZ�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ��5IF�ÇOBODJBM�
TUBUFNFOUT�JO�&OHMJTI�MBOHVBHF�IBWF�CFFO�USBOTMBUFE�GSPN�UIF�5IBJ�MBOHVBHF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
5IF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�IBWF�CFFO�QSFQBSFE�PO�B�IJTUPSJDBM�DPTU�CBTJT�FYDFQU�XIFSF�PUIFSXJTF�EJTDMPTFE�JO�UIF�
accounting policies.

3. New accounting standards 

    Below is a summary of accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting year and those that 
will become effective in the future.

(a)  Accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting year

Accounting standards:
TAS 12    Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Financial Reporting Standard:
TFRS 8   Operating Segments

Accounting Standard Interpretations:
54*$���� � � (PWFSONFOU�"TTJTUBODF���/P�4QFDJÇD�3FMBUJPO�UP�0QFSBUJOH�"DUJWJUJFT
TSIC 21   Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
TSIC 25   Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders
Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets

5IFTF�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSET
�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�TUBOEBSE
�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSE�JOUFSQSFUBUJPOT�BOE�BDDPVOUJOH�USFBUNFOU�
HVJEBODF�EP�OPU�IBWF�BOZ�TJHOJÇDBOU�JNQBDU�PO�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�FYDFQU�GPS�UIF�GPMMPXJOH�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSE�

    TAS 12 Income Taxes 

����5IJT�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSE�SFRVJSFT�BO�FOUJUZ�UP�JEFOUJGZ�UFNQPSBSZ�EJGGFSFODFT�CFUXFFO�UIF�DBSSZJOH�BNPVOU�PG�BO�BTTFU
PS�MJBCJMJUZ�JO�UIF�TUBUFNFOU�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�BOE�JUT�UBY�CBTF�BOE�SFDPHOJTF�UIF�UBY�FGGFDUT�BT�EFGFSSFE�UBY�BTTFUT�
or liabilities subjecting to certain recognition criteria. The Company has changed this accounting policy in this current 
QFSJPE�BOE�SFTUBUFE�UIF�QSJPS�ZFBSkT�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
�QSFTFOUFE�BT�DPNQBSBUJWF�JOGPSNBUJPO
�BT�UIPVHI�UIF�$PNQBOZ�
had initially recognised the tax effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities. The cumulative effect of this change in 
BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDZ�IBT�CFFO�QSFTFOUFE�JO�/PUF���UP�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�

S P V I Public Company Limited 
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013 
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 Accounting Standards:

TAS 1 (revised 2012)  Presentation of Financial Statements
TAS 7 (revised 2012)  Statement of Cash Flows
TAS 12 (revised 2012)  Income Taxes
TAS 17 (revised 2012)  Leases
TAS 18 (revised 2012)  Revenue
5"4����	SFWJTFE�����
�� &NQMPZFF�#FOFÇUT
TAS 21 (revised 2012)  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
TAS 24 (revised 2012)  Related Party Disclosures
TAS 28 (revised 2012)  Investments in Associates
TAS 31 (revised 2012)  Interests in Joint Ventures
TAS 34 (revised 2012)  Interim Financial Reporting
TAS 38 (revised 2012)  Intangible Assets

 Financial Reporting Standards:

TFRS 2 (revised 2012) Share-based Payment
TFRS 3 (revised 2012) Business Combinations
TFRS 4    Insurance Contracts
TFRS 5    Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
    Discontinued Operations
TFRS 8 (revised 2012)  Operating Segments

 Accounting Standard Interpretations: 
TSIC 15   Operating Leases - Incentives
TSIC 27   Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
    Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
TSIC 29   Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures
TSIC 32   Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs

 Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 1    Changes in Existing Decommissioning, 
    Restoration and Similar Liabilities
TFRIC 4    Determining whether an Arrangement contains
    a Lease
TFRIC 5    Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, 
    Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
TFRIC 7     Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29  
� � � � 'JOBODJBM�3FQPSUJOH�JO�)ZQFSJOÈBUJPOBSZ�&DPOPNJFT
TFRIC 10    Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
TFRIC 12   Service Concession Arrangements
TFRIC 13   Customer Loyalty Programmes
TFRIC 17   Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
TFRIC 18   Transfers of Assets from Customers

Effective date

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2016
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2016
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2016

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

(b) Accounting standards that will become effective in the future
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5IF�$PNQBOZkT�NBOBHFNFOU�CFMJFWFT�UIBU�UIFTF�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSET
�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�TUBOEBSE
�BDDPVOUJOH�TUBOEBSE�
JOUFSQSFUBUJPOT�BOE�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�TUBOEBSET�JOUFSQSFUBUJPOT�XJMM�OPU�IBWF�BOZ�TJHOJÇDBOU�JNQBDU�PO�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�
for the year when they are initially applied.

4.  Cumulative effect of changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new accounting standard 
���%VSJOH�UIF�DVSSFOU�ZFBS
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�NBEF�UIF�DIBOHFT�EFTDSJCFE�JO�/PUF���UP�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�UP�JUT�
TJHOJÇDBOU�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDJFT
�BT�B�SFTVMU�PG�UIF�BEPQUJPO�PG�5IBJ�"DDPVOUJOH�4UBOEBSE����*ODPNF�5BYFT��5IF�DVNVMBUJWF�
effect of the changes in the accounting policies has been separately presented in the statements of changes in 
TIBSFIPMEFSTk�FRVJUZ�� 

����4JHOJÇDBOU�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDJFT
5.1 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods
���4BMFT�PG�HPPET�BSF�SFDPHOJTFE�XIFO�UIF�TJHOJÇDBOU�SJTLT�BOE�SFXBSET�PG�PXOFSTIJQ�PG�UIF�HPPET�IBWF�QBTTFE�UP�
the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts and 
allowances.

Rendering of services
Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion. 

Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

����$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT
���$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT�DPOTJTU�PG�DBTI�JO�IBOE�BOE�BU�CBOLT
�BOE�BMM�IJHIMZ�MJRVJE�JOWFTUNFOUT�XJUI�BO�PSJHJOBM�
maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

5.3 Trade accounts receivable 
   Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for 
the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection 
experience and analysis of debt aging. 

5IF�BNPVOUT�PG�BEKVTUNFOUT�BGGFDUJOH�UIF�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�BOE�UIF�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�
income are summarised below.

4UBUFNFOUT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO
Increase in deferred tax assets

Increase in unappropriated retained earnings

Statements of comprehensive income

Decrease in income tax expenses

Increase in basic earnings per share (Baht)

As at 31 December 

2013

3,685

3,685

As at 31 December 

2012

2,458

2,458

For the year ended                   

31 December 2013

(1,227)

0.0044

As at 1 January 

2012

1,428

1,428

For the year ended                  

31 December 2012

(1,030)

0.0043

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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5.4 Inventories 
���*OWFOUPSJFT�BSF�WBMVFE�BU�UIF�MPXFS�PG�DPTU�	ÇSTU�JO
�ÇSTU�PVU�NFUIPE
�BOE�OFU�SFBMJTBCMF�WBMVF��5IF�OFU�SFBMJTBCMF�
value of inventory is estimated from the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
costs to complete the sale. Allowance for diminution in inventory value will be set up for obsolete, slow moving or 
deteriorated inventories.

����&RVJQNFOU�%FQSFDJBUJPO
���&RVJQNFOU�JT�TUBUFE�BU�DPTU�MFTT�BDDVNVMBUFE�EFQSFDJBUJPO�BOE�BMMPXBODF�GPS�MPTT�PO�JNQBJSNFOU�PG�BTTFUT�	JG�BOZ
�
%FQSFDJBUJPO�PG�FRVJQNFOU�JT�DBMDVMBUFE�CZ�SFGFSFODF�UP�UIFJS�DPTUT�PO�UIF�TUSBJHIU�MJOF�CBTJT�PWFS�UIF�GPMMPXJOH�FTUJNBUFE�
useful lives: 

Leasehold improvement  - 5 years
Computer          - 3 years
0èDF�FRVJQNFOU� � �� ��ZFBST
'VSOJUVSF�BOE�ÇYUVSFT� � �� ��ZFBST
Motor vehicles         - 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income. 
No depreciation is provided on construction in progress.

5.6 Intangible assets

   Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss (if any). Intangible 
BTTFUT�XJUI�ÇOJUF�MJWFT�BSF�BNPSUJTFE�PO�B�TZTUFNBUJD�CBTJT�PWFS�UIF�FDPOPNJD�VTFGVM�MJGF�BOE�UFTUFE�GPS�JNQBJSNFOU�
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation 
NFUIPE�PG�TVDI�JOUBOHJCMF�BTTFUT�BSF�SFWJFXFE�BU�MFBTU�BU�FBDI�ÇOBODJBM�ZFBS�FOE��5IF�BNPSUJTBUJPO�FYQFOTF�JT�DIBSHFE�
UP�QSPÇU�PS�MPTT�

"�TVNNBSZ�PG�UIF�JOUBOHJCMF�BTTFUT�XJUI�ÇOJUF�VTFGVM�MJWFT�BSF�BT�GPMMPXT�
         
                                   Useful lives
Computer software     5 years

5.7 Leasehold rights
   Leasehold right is amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease period.

5.8 Related party transactions
   Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether 
directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

   They also include company and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives 
UIFN�TJHOJÇDBOU�JOÈVFODF�PWFS�UIF�$PNQBOZ
�LFZ�NBOBHFNFOU�QFSTPOOFM
�EJSFDUPST�BOE�PGGJDFST�XJUI�
authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

5.9 Long-term lease agreements 
���-FBTFT�PG�FRVJQNFOU�XIJDI�EP�OPU�USBOTGFS�TVCTUBOUJBMMZ�BMM�UIF�SJTLT�BOE�SFXBSET�PG�PXOFSTIJQ�BSF�DMBTTJÇFE�BT�
PQFSBUJOH�MFBTFT��0QFSBUJOH�MFBTF�QBZNFOUT�BSF�SFDPHOJTFE�BT�BO�FYQFOTF�JO�QSPÇU�PS�MPTT�PO�B�TUSBJHIU�MJOF�CBTJT�PWFS�
the lease term.
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5.10 Impairment of assets
���"U�UIF�FOE�PG�FBDI�SFQPSUJOH�QFSJPE
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�QFSGPSNT�JNQBJSNFOU�SFWJFXT�JO�SFTQFDU�PG�UIF�FRVJQNFOU�BOE�
intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An 
impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.
"O�JNQBJSNFOU�MPTT�JT�SFDPHOJTFE�JO�QSPÇU�PS�MPTT��

�����&NQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
4IPSU�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

1PTU�FNQMPZNFOU�CFOFÇUT�
%FÇOFE�CFOFÇU�QMBOT�
   The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement under 
MBCPS�MBX��5IF�$PNQBOZ�USFBUT�UIFTF�TFWFSBODF�QBZNFOU�PCMJHBUJPOT�BT�B�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�QMBO��
5IF�PCMJHBUJPO�VOEFS�UIF�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�QMBO�JT�EFUFSNJOFE�CBTFE�PO�BDUVBSJBM�UFDIOJRVFT
�VTJOH�UIF�1SPKFDUFE�6OJU�$SFEJU�
Method by an independent actuarial company. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment CFOFÇUT�BSF�SFDPHOJTFE�JNNFEJBUFMZ�JO�PUIFS�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�
JODPNF��5IF�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇUT�MJBCJMJUZ�DPNQSJTFT�UIF�QSFTFOU�WBMVF�PG�UIF�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�PCMJHBUJPO�MFTT�VOSFDPHOJTFE�QBTU�

    service  cost and unrecognised actuarial gains or losse.

5.12 Provisions
   Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
UIBU�BO�PVUÈPX�PG�SFTPVSDFT�FNCPEZJOH�FDPOPNJD�CFOFÇUT�XJMM�CF�SFRVJSFE�UP�TFUUMF�UIF�PCMJHBUJPO
�BOE�B�SFMJBCMF�
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

5.13 Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based 
PO�UBYBCMF�QSPÇUT�EFUFSNJOFE�JO�BDDPSEBODF�XJUI�UBY�MFHJTMBUJPO�
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their car-
rying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.  

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise deferred tax as-
sets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future 
UBYBCMF�QSPÇU�XJMM�CF�BWBJMBCMF�BHBJOTU�XIJDI�TVDI�EFEVDUJCMF�UFNQPSBSZ�EJGGFSFODFT�BOE�UBY�MPTTFT�DBSSJFE�GPSXBSE�DBO�
be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that 
JU�JT�OP�MPOHFS�QSPCBCMF�UIBU�TVèDJFOU�UBYBCMF�QSPÇU�XJMM�CF�BWBJMBCMF�UP�BMMPX�BMM�PS�QBSU�PG�UIF�EFGFSSFE�UBY�BTTFU�UP�
be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ FRVJUZ�JG�UIF�UBY�SFMBUFT�UP�JUFNT�UIBU�BSF�SFDPSEFE�EJSFDUMZ�UP�
TIBSFIPMEFSTk�FRVJUZ��
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����4JHOJÇDBOU�BDDPVOUJOH�KVEHFNFOUT�BOE�FTUJNBUFT
���5IF�QSFQBSBUJPO�PG�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�JO�DPOGPSNJUZ�XJUI�ÇOBODJBM�SFQPSUJOH�TUBOEBSET�BU�UJNFT�SFRVJSFT�management 
to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements 
BOE�FTUJNBUFT�BGGFDU�SFQPSUFE�BNPVOUT�BOE�EJTDMPTVSFT��BOE�BDUVBM�SFTVMUT�DPVME�EJGGFS�GSPN�UIFTF�FTUJNBUFT��4JHOJÇDBOU�
judgements and estimates are as follows:

Leases  
���*O�EFUFSNJOJOH�XIFUIFS�B�MFBTF�JT�UP�CF�DMBTTJÇFE�BT�BO�PQFSBUJOH�MFBTF�PS�ÇOBODF�MFBTF
�UIF�NBOBHFNFOU�JT�SF-
RVJSFE�UP�VTF�KVEHFNFOU�SFHBSEJOH�XIFUIFS�TJHOJÇDBOU�SJTL�BOE�SFXBSET�PG�PXOFSTIJQ�PG�UIF�MFBTFE�BTTFU�IBT�CFFO�
transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts
   In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and 
FTUJNBUFT�CBTFE�VQPO
�BNPOH�PUIFS�UIJOHT
�EFCU�DPMMFDUJPO�IJTUPSZ
�BHJOH�QSPÇMF�PG�PVUTUBOEJOH�EFCUT�BOE�UIF�
prevailing economic condition. 

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory
   The determination of allowances for diminution in the value PG�JOWFOUPSZ
�SFRVJSFT�NBOBHFNFOU�UP�NBLF�KVEHFNFOUT�BOE�
estimates. The allowance for decline in net realizable value is estimated based on the selling price expected in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs to complete the sales; and provision for obsolete, slow-moving and deteriorated 
inventories that is estimated based on the approximate aging of each type of inventory.
 
&RVJQNFOU�%FQSFDJBUJPO
���*O�EFUFSNJOJOH�EFQSFDJBUJPO�PG�FRVJQNFOU
�UIF�NBOBHFNFOU�JT�SFRVJSFE�UP�NBLF�FTUJNBUFT�PG�UIF�VTFGVM�MJWFT�BOE�SFTJEVBM�
WBMVFT�PG�UIF�FRVJQNFOU�BOE�UP�SFWJFX�FTUJNBUF�VTFGVM�MJWFT�BOE�SFTJEVBM�WBMVFT�XIFO�UIFSF�BSF�BOZ�DIBOHFT�
���*O�BEEJUJPO
�UIF�NBOBHFNFOU�JT�SFRVJSFE�UP�SFWJFX�FRVJQment for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment 
MPTTFT�XIFO�JU�JT�EFUFSNJOFE�UIBU�UIFJS�SFDPWFSBCMF�BNPVOU�JT�MPXFS�UIBO�UIF�DBSSZJOH�BNPVOU��5IJT�SFRVJSFT�KVEHFNFOUT�
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the 
FYUFOU�UIBU�JU� JT�QSPCBCMF�UIBU�UBYBCMF�QSPÇU�XJMM�CF�BWBJMBCMF�BHBJOTU�XIJDI�UIF�UFNQPSBSZ�EJGGFSFODFT�BOE�
MPTTFT�DBO�CF�VUJMJTFE��4JHOJÇDBOU�NBOBHFNFOU�KVEHFNFOU�JT�SFRVJSFE�UP�EFUFSNJOF�UIF�BNPVOU�PG�EFGFSSFE�
UBY�BTTFUT�UIBU�DBO�CF�SFDPHOJTFE
�CBTFE�VQPO�UIF�MJLFMZ�UJNJOH�BOE�MFWFM�PG�FTUJNBUF�GVUVSF�UBYBCMF�QSPÇUT��
 
1PTU�FNQMPZNFOU�CFOFÇUT�VOEFS�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�QMBOT�
����5IF�PCMJHBUJPO�VOEFS�UIF�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�QMBO�JT�EFUFSNJOFE�CBTFE�PO�BDUVBSJBM�UFDIOJRVFT��4VDI�EFUFSNJOBUJPO�
is made  based  on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff 
turnover rate.
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7.  Related party transactions

���%VSJOH�UIF�ZFBST
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�IBE�TJHOJÇDBOU�CVTJOFTT�USBOTBDUJPOT�XJUI�SFMBUFE�QBSUJFT��4VDI�USBOTBDUJPOT
�XIJDI�
are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and 
bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties. 

Transactions with major shareholder

  (IT City Public Company Limited)

Sales of goods 

Purchases of goods 
Service fee expenses
Dividends

Transactions with related companies

Sales of goods 
Purchases of goods 
1VSDIBTFT�PG�ÇYFE�BTTFUT
Purchases of intangible assets
Management fee
Service expenses
Logistics and distribution fee
Interest expenses

2013 2012

Approximate wholesale market 
price 
Approximate market price
Prices agreed by the parties   
At the declared rate

Market price
Market price
Market price
Market price
Prices agreed by the parties
Prices agreed by the parties
Prices agreed by the parties
Interest rate as stipulated in 
the agreement

 (Unit: Million Baht)

305

-
2
35

4
4
1
6
4
7
6
-

406

2
2
1

20
9
-
-
7
5
1
1

Pricing policy

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related companies 
are as follows:

Trade and other receivables - related parties (Note 9)
Major shareholder
Related companies (related by common shareholders and 
common directors)
Total trade and other receivables - related parties

Other current assets - prepaid management fee (Note 11)
Related company (related by common shareholders and common 
directors)
Total other current assets - prepaid management fee 

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 17)
Major shareholder
Related companies (related by common shareholders and 
common directors)
Total trade and other payables - related parties

2013 2012

    (Unit: Thousand Baht)

26,901
117

27,018

-

-

546
9,221

9,767

57,528
639

58,167

4,000

4,000

1,179
4,541

5,720
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%JSFDUPST�BOE�NBOBHFNFOUkT�CFOFÇUT
%VSJOH�UIF�ZFBST�FOEFE����%FDFNCFS������BOE�����
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�IBE�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇU�FYQFOTFT�QBZBCMF�UP�UIFJS�
directors and management as below.

4IPSU�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
1PTU�FNQMPZNFOU�CFOFÇUT
Total

2013 2012

(Unit: Million Baht)

21.4

0.4

21.8

16.1

(0.1)

16.0

Cash

Bank deposits 

Total

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

1,397

125,662

127,059

896

49,188

50,084

2012

8. Cash and cash equivalents

"T�BU����%FDFNCFS�����
�CBOL�EFQPTJUT�JO�TBWJOHT�BDDPVOUT�BOE�ÇYFE�EFQPTJUT�DBSSJFE�JOUFSFTUT�CFUXFFO�
0.50 and 1.75 percent per annum (2012: between 0.625 and 1.85 percent per annum).

Guarantee obligations with related parties

As at 31 December 2013, a total of Baht 200 million (2012: Baht 200 million) of credit facilities granted 
to the Company by a commercial bank is guaranteed by major shareholder, a related party and directors.  
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9. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

 Not yet due

 Past due

 Up to 3 months

Total trade receivables - related parties

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

 Not yet due

 Past due

 Up to 3 months

  3 - 6 months

 6 - 12 months

 Over 12 months

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net

Total trade receivable - net

Other receivables

Other receivables - related parties

Other receivables - unrelated parties

Total other receivables

Total trade and other receivables - net

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

57,698

375

58,073

41,048

22,141

428

292

186

64,095

(339)

63,756

121,829

94

246

340

122,169

27,018

-

27,018

74,558

21,061

299

23

59

96,000

(694)

95,306

122,324

-

254

254

122,578

2012

Finished goods

Less: Reduce cost to net realisable value

Inventories - net

190,967

(6,899)

184,068

168,883

(12,038)

156,845

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

10. Inventories
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Prepaid management fee - related party

Value added tax refundable

Others

Total other current liabilities

4,000

23,406

1,424

28,830

-

15,130

3,549

18,679

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

11. Other current assets

The outstanding balance of other current assets as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

12. Restricted bank deposits

5IF�$PNQBOZ�QMFEHFE�ÇYFE�EFQPTJUT�BU�CBOL�UPUBMJOH�BQQSPYJNBUFMZ�#BIU�����NJMMJPO�	���%FDFNCFS�������
Baht 0.2 million) with a bank to secure the credit facilities of the Company.

60
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Cost:

1  January 2012

Additions

Disposals

Transfers in (out)

31 December 2012

Additions

Disposals

Transfers in (out)

31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2012

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation on disposals

31 December 2012

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation on disposals

31 December 2013

Net book value:

31 December 2012

31 December 2013

Depreciation for the year:

2012 (included in administrative expenses)

2013 (included in administrative expenses)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,000

2,000

-

-

-

-

56

-

56

-

1,944

4,669

1,811

(52)

-

6,428

1,965

(27)

-

8,366

978

1,940

(16)

2,902

2,395

(3)

5,294

3,526

3,072

3,825

2,173

-

-

5,998

1,035

(10)

-

7,023

553

988

-

1,541

1,350

(5)

2,886

4,457

4,137

27,604

4,825

-

9,098

41,527

5,753

(926)

2,699

49,053

3,024

7,246

-

10,270

9,021

(216)

19,075

31,257

29,978

431

493

(79)

-

845

-

-

-

845

37

149

(17)

169

169

-

338

676

507

1,513

8,137

-

(9,098)

552

4,699

(552)

(4,699)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

552

-

38,042

17,439

(131)

-

55,350

13,452

(1,515)

-

67,287

4,592

10,323

(33)

14,882

12,991

(224)

27,649

40,468

39,638

10,323

12,991

 
Leasehold

improvement Computer

0èDF
FRVJQNFOU

Furniture

BOE�ÇYUVSFT
Motor

vehicles

Construction

in progress Total

13. Equipment
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

2,463

(485)

1,978

9,129

(1,031)

8,098

14. Intangible assets 

The net book value of intangible assets, which are computer software, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 
is presented below.

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

Net book value at beginning of year 

"DRVJTJUJPO�PG�DPNQVUFS�TPGUXBSF���
Amortisation for the year

Net book value at end of year 

1,076

1,272

(370)

1,978

1,978

6,666

(546)

8,098

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2013 and 2012 is presented below.   

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

15. Leasehold right
   On 9 February 2011, the Company entered into a leasehold agreement for lease of space in Esplanade 
Cineplex from S P V Com Retail Co., Ltd. The agreement is in force as from 11 February 2011 to August 
2031, or a total of 20 years, 5 months and 24 days. The Company paid for the leasehold rights for the 
entire agreement period amounting to Baht 9.4 million and amortised leasehold rights using the straight 
line basis throughout the agreement period.

Leasehold right - cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Net book value at beginning of year 

Amortisation for the year

Net book value at end of year 

9,377

(865)

8,512

8,971

(459)

8,512

9,377

(1,324)

8,053

8,512

(459)

8,053

A reconciliation of the net book value of leasehold right for the years 2013 and 2012 is presented below.   

 

 

2013

2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

2012

16. Other non-current assets

The outstanding balance of other non-current assets as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are disposits.
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Trade payables - related parties

Trade payables - unrelated parties

Other payables - related parties

Other payables - unrelated parties

Total trade and other payables

%FÇOFE�CFOFÇU�PCMJHBUJPO�BU�CFHJOOJOH�PG�ZFBS
3FWFSTBM�PG�QSPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
Current service cost

Interest cost

%FÇOFE�CFOFÇU�PCMJHBUJPO�BU�FOE�PG�ZFBS

Current service cost

Interest cost

5PUBM�FYQFOTF�SFDPHOJTFE�JO�QSPÇU�BOE�MPTT
Line items under which such expenses are 

JODMVEFE�JO�QSPÇU�BOE�MPTT
Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

530

271,640

5,190

13,812

291,172

6,102

(1,648)

422

178

5,054

422

178

600

18

582

-

122,484

9,767

9,227

141,478

5,054

-

439

202

5,695

439

202

641

19

622

17. Trade and other payables

 

 

 

 

2013

2013

2013

2013
(% per annum)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

2012

2012

2012
(% per annum)

����1SPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT�
1SPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
�XIJDI�JT�DPNQFOTBUJPOT�PO�FNQMPZFFTk�SFUJSFNFOU
�XBT�BT�
follows:

-POH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇU�FYQFOTFT�JODMVEFE�JO�UIF�QSPÇU�PS�MPTT�XBT�BT�GPMMPXT�

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increase rate (depending on age)

Staff turnover rate

4.00

4.00 - 6.50

10.00 - 40.00

4.00

4.00 - 6.50

10.00 - 40.00
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19.  Share capital

On 26 March 2013, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company passed resolutions as  the follows:

19.1  To transform the Company into a public limited company and  list  the Company on the MAI. The Company registered  
its transformation with the Ministry of Commerce on 10 April 2013.

19.2  To change the par value of the Company’s ordinary shares from Baht 10 per share to Baht 0.50 per share, 
resulting in an increase in the number of ordinary shares from 12,000,000 shares to 240,000,000 shares. 
The Company registered the change in the par value of the Company’s ordinary shares with the Ministry 
of Commerce on 10 April 2013.

19.3  To increase the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 120 million (240 million ordinary shares of Baht 
0.50 per share after the par value is changed as discussed in Note 19.2) to Baht 200 million (400 million 
ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 per share) by issuing 160,000,000 new ordinary shares with a par value of 
Baht 0.50 each. The Company registered the increase of its registered share capital with the Ministry of 
Commerce on 10 April 2013.

19.4  To allocate 160,000,000 new ordinary shares as follows: 
1)  50,000,000 ordinary shares to be offered to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding in the Company 

(rights offering) with a subscription ratio of 1 new share for every 4.8 existing shares with an offer price of 
Baht 0.50 per share. In April 2013, the Company received payment amounting to Baht 25,000,000 for 50,000,000 
TIBSFT�PG�BEEJUJPOBM�TIBSF�DBQJUBM��"T�B�SFTVMU
�JTTVFE�BOE�QBJE�VQ�TIBSF�DBQJUBM�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�FRVBMFE�#BIU�
145 million (290 million ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each). The Company registered the increase in its paid-up 
share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 30 April 2013. 

2)  104,500,000 ordinary shares reserved for initial public offering and assign an executive committee or a person who 
was authorised by the executive committee to determine conditions and other details relevant to the allocation 
of shares and to take any actions deemed necessary or incidental to the offering of shares in all respects, as 
well as to appoint a distributor and underwriter. The executive committee is also responsible for the preparation 
PG�SFRVFTUT�BOE�TVQQPSUJOH�EPDVNFOUT�UIBU�BSF�UP�CF�TVCNJUUFE�UP�UIF�4FDVSJUJFT�BOE�&YDIBOHF�$PNNJTTJPO�
and other related agencies as well as other agreements that are relevant to such operations.

3)  5,500,000 ordinary shares reserved to be offered to directors and/or employees of the Company.

19.5  During 11 - 13 December 2013, the Company offered 110 million ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 0.50 each, 
at a price of Baht 0.90 each through the Initial Public Offering and directors and employees of the Company. The 
Company registered the increase of its issued and paid-up share capital from Baht 145 million (290 million ordinary 
shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 each) to Baht 200 million (400 million ordinary shares with a par value of 
Baht 0.50 each) with the Ministry of Commerce on 16 December 2013, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
approved the 400 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 each as listed securities for trading, effective 
from 19 December 2013. The Company incurred expenses relating to the share offering totaling Baht 4.2 million 
(net of income tax of Baht 1 million), which were presented as a deduction from the share premium.

Year 2013
Year 2012

 

5,695
5,054

3FUJSFNFOU�CFOFÇUT�QMBO

"NPVOUT�PG�EFÇOFE�CFOFÇU�PCMJHBUJPO�GPS�UIF�DVSSFOU�BOE�QSFWJPVT�ZFBS�BSF�BT�GPMMPXT
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20. Statutory reserve

���1VSTVBOU�UP�4FDUJPO�����PG�UIF�1VCMJD�-JNJUFE�$PNQBOJFT�"DU�#�&������
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�JT�SFRVJSFE�UP�TFU�BTJEF�
UP�B�TUBUVUPSZ�SFTFSWF�BU�MFBTU���QFSDFOU�PG�JUT�OFU�JODPNF�BGUFS�EFEVDUJOH�BDDVNVMBUFE�EFÇDJU�CSPVHIU�GPSXBSE�	JG�
any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital.  The statutory reserve is not available for dividend 
distribution. 

%VSJOH�UIF�ZFBS�����
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�TFU�BTJEF�BO�BEEJUJPOBM�TUBUVUPSZ�SFTFSWF�PG�JUT�OFU�QSPÇU�GPS������BOE�2013 
UPUBMMJOH�#BIU�����NJMMJPO�	������UIF�$PNQBOZ�TFU�BTJEF�TUBUVUPSZ�SFTFSWF�PG�JUT�OFU�QSPÇU�PG�#BIU�����NJMMJPO
�

Income from selling of database

Gain on exchange 

Interest income

Others

Total 

4BMBSZ
�XBHFT�BOE�PUIFS�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
Rental and service center expenses from operating 

lease agreements

$IBOHF�JO�JOWFOUPSJFT�PG�ÇOJTIFE�HPPET
Credit card fee

Depreciation and amortization

Logistics and distribution fee

Utilities expenses

0èDF�TVQQMZ�FYQFOTFT
Transportation 

-

229

718

1,397

2,344

98,551

20,260

(48,830)

21,051

11,152

1,350

4,644

2,436

1,255

4,673

1,047

846

1,613

8,179

106,460

24,553

22,084

17,843

13,996

6,390

5,274

2,708

63

21. Other income

22. Expenses by nature

4JHOJÇDBOU�FYQFOTFT�CZ�OBUVSF�BSF�BT�GPMMPXT�

 

 

2013

2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

2012
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23. Income tax 

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are made up as follows:

3FDPODJMJBUJPO�CFUXFFO�JODPNF�UBY�FYQFOTFT�BOE�UIF�QSPEVDU�PG�BDDPVOUJOH�QSPÇU�NVMUJQMJFE�CZ�UIF�
applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

 

 

2013

2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Restated)

(Restated)

2012

2012

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary 

differences  

Income tax expense reported in the statement of

comprehensive income

15,037

(1,030)

14,007

5,607

(1,227)

4,380

"DDPVOUJOH�QSPÇU�CFGPSF�UBY
Applicable tax rate

"DDPVOUJOH�QSPÇU�CFGPSF�UBY�NVMUJQMJFE�CZ
applicable tax rate

Effects of:

Non-deductible expenses

Additional expense deductions allowed

Total

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of 

comprehensive income

59,887

23%

13,774

233

-

233

14,007

20,637

20%

4,127

279

(26)

253

4,380
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1SPÇU�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�	5IPVTBOE�#BIU

/VNCFS�PG�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSFT�BGUFS�SFÈFDUJOH�UIF�SFTVMU�PG
  change in par value (Thousand shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

  (Thousand shares)

Earnings per share (Baht/share)

45,881

240,000

240,000

0.169

16,257

400,000

278,521

0.06

 
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Restated)
Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

1SPWJTJPO�GPS�MPOH�UFSN�FNQMPZFF�CFOFÇUT
Total

As at
31 December 2013

As at
31 December 2012

4UBUFNFOUT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO
As at

1 January 2012

68

1,379

1,011

2,458

139

2,407

1,139

3,685

44

164

1,220

1,428

   In October 2011, the cabinet passed a resolution to reduce the corporate income tax rate from 30 percent to 23 
percent in 2013, and then to 20 percent from 2013. In addition, in order to comply with the resolution of the cabinet, 
in December 2012, the decreases in tax rates for 2013 - 2014 were enacted through a royal decree. The Company 
IBT�SFÈFDUFE�UIF�DIBOHFT�JO�UIF�JODPNF�UBY�SBUFT�JO�JUT�EFGFSSFE�UBY�DBMDVMBUJPO
�BT�QSFTFOUFE�BCPWF��

24. Basic earnings per share

���#BTJD�FBSOJOHT�QFS�TIBSF�JT�DBMDVMBUFE�CZ�EJWJEJOH�QSPÇU�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�	FYDMVEJOH�PUIFS�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�JODPNF
�
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, after adjusting the number of ordinary 
shares in proportion to the change in the number of shares as a result of the change in par value from Baht 10 each 
UP�#BIU������FBDI�BT�EJTDVTTFE�JO�/PUF������UP�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��5IF�OVNCFS�PG�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSFT�JT�BEKVTUFE�
as if the changes in number of shares and per value had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period reported.

25. Segment information

   Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly reviewed 
by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment 
BOE�BTTFTT�JUT�QFSGPSNBODF��5IF�DIJFG�PQFSBUJOH�EFDJTJPO�NBLFS�IBT�CFFO�JEFOUJÇFE�BT�.BOBHJOH�%JSFDUPS��
   The one main reportable operating segment of the Company is the distribution of computers and related accessories 
and the single geographical area of its operations is Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating 
QSPÇU�PS�MPTT
�PO�B�CBTJT�DPOTJTUFOU�XJUI�UIBU�VTFE�UP�NFBTVSF�PQFSBUJOH�QSPÇU�PS�MPTT�JO�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT��
"T�B�SFTVMU
�BMM�PG�UIF�SFWFOVFT
�PQFSBUJOH�QSPÇUT�BOE�BTTFUT�BT�SFÈFDUFE�JO�UIFTF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�QFSUBJO�UP�UIF�
aforementioned reportable operating segment and geographical area

 
2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012
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Payable within:

Less than 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than 5 years

 
As at 31 December

23.0

26.1

7.2

21.9

15.1

6.9

26. Dividend 

   On 11 September 2012, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors approved the payment of an interim 
EJWJEFOE�GSPN�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�QSPÇU�GPS�UIF�TJY�NPOUI�QFSJPE�FOEFE����+VOF������PG�#BIU������QFS�TIBSF
�PS�B�UPUBM�
sum of Baht 3 million. The Company paid such interim dividend on 11 October 2012.

   On 26 March 2013, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company passed a resolution to approve a 
ÇOBM�EJWJEFOE�GPS������PG�#BIU��������QFS�TIBSF
�PS�B�UPUBM�PG�#BIU����NJMMJPO��5IF�$PNQBOZ�QBJE�TVDI�EJWJEFOE�JO�
April 2013.

27.2 Guarantees

   As at 31 December 2013, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 327.2 million (2012: Baht 
����NJMMJPO
�JTTVFE�CZ�CBOL�PO�CFIBMG�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ�JO�SFTQFDU�PG�UIF�QVSDIBTF�PG�HPPET�BOE�TFSWJDFT�BT�SFRVJSFE�
in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

28.1 Financial risk management

���5IF�$PNQBOZkT�ÇOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT
�BT�EFÇOFE�VOEFS�5IBJ�"DDPVOUJOH�4UBOEBSE�/P�����l'JOBODJBM�*OTUSVNFOUT��
%JTDMPTVSF�BOE�1SFTFOUBUJPOTm
�QSJODJQBMMZ�DPNQSJTF�DBTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOUT
�DVSSFOU�JOWFTUNFOUT
�USBEF�BOE�PUIFS�
SFDFJWBCMFT�BOE�USBEF�BOE�PUIFS�QBZBCMFT��5IF�ÇOBODJBM�SJTLT�BTTPDJBUFE�XJUI�UIFTF�ÇOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT�BOE�IPX�
they are managed is described below.

27. Commitments and contingent liabilities

27.1 Operating lease commitments
27.1.1 The Company has entered into a logistics and distribution services agreement with a related company 

whereby the Company was obliged to pay for the service fee on a basis and at a rate as stipulated in 
the agreement. The term of agreement is 1 year and 3 months and shall be renewal for another year 
each time, unless cancelled by either party.

27.1.2 The Company has entered into several operating lease contracts and service contracts in respect of the 
MFBTF�PG�PèDF�CVJMEJOH
�XBSFIPVTF�BOE�CSBODI�BSFBT��5IF�UFSNT�PG�UIF�BHSFFNFOUT�BSF�HFOFSBMMZ�CFUXFFO�
1 and 18 years. 
'VUVSF�NJOJNVN� MFBTF�QBZNFOUT� SFRVJSFE�VOEFS� UIFTF�OPO�DBODFMMBCMF�PQFSBUJOH� MFBTF�DPOUSBDUT�BOE�
service contracts were as follows.

2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2012

28. Financial instruments
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Credit risk

   The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The Company manages 
the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material 
ÇOBODJBM�MPTTFT��*O�BEEJUJPO
�UIF�$PNQBOZ�EPFT�OPU�IBWF�IJHI�DPODFOUSBUJPOT�PG�DSFEJU�SJTL�TJODF�JU�IBT�B�MBSHF�
customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables 
BT�TUBUFE�JO�UIF�TUBUFNFOU�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO�

Interest rate risk

   The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks.  However, since most of the 
$PNQBOZkT�ÇOBODJBM�BTTFUT�CFBS�ÈPBUJOH�JOUFSFTU�SBUFT�PS�ÇYFE�JOUFSFTU�SBUFT�XIJDI�BSF�DMPTF�UP�UIF�NBSLFU�SBUF��
4JHOJÇDBOU�ÇOBODJBM�BTTFUT�BOE�MJBCJMJUJFT�DMBTTJÇFE�CZ�UZQF�PG�JOUFSFTU�SBUF�BSF�TVNNBSJTFE�JO�UIF�UBCMF�CFMPX
�XJUI�
UIPTF�ÇOBODJBM�BTTFUT�BOE�MJBCJMJUJFT�UIBU�DBSSZ�ÇYFE�JOUFSFTU�SBUFT�GVSUIFS�DMBTTJÇFE�CBTFE�PO�UIF�NBUVSJUZ�EBUF
�PS�UIF�
repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

 
As at 31 December

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Fixed interest 

rates within

1 year

Floating

interest

rate

Non-interest

bearing

Total

Effective

interest

rate

(% per annum)

Financial Assets

$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOU�
Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial Assets

$BTI�BOE�DBTI�FRVJWBMFOU�
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

17

2

-

19

-

-

22

-

22

-

-

23

-

-

23

-

-

91

-

91

-

-

10

-

123

133

141

141

14

122

136

291

291

50

2

123

175

141

141

127

122

249

291

291

0.50 - 1.75

2.00

-

-

0.625 - 1.85

-

-
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Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing transactions that are denominated in 
foreign currencies. 

5IF�CBMBODFT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�MJBCJMJUJFT�EFOPNJOBUFE�JO�GPSFJHO�DVSSFODJFT�BSF�TVNNBSJTFE�CFMPX��

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Foreign currency Financial liabilities as at                       

31 December 2013

Average selling rate as at                    

31 December 2013

US dollar

(Thousand)

24

(Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

32.9494

�����'BJS�WBMVFT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT
���4JODF�UIF�NBKPSJUZ�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�ÇOBODJBM�JOTUSVNFOUT�BSF�TIPSU�UFSN�JO�OBUVSF
�UIFJS�GBJS�WBMVF�JT�OPU�FYQFDUFE�
UP�CF�NBUFSJBMMZ�EJGGFSFOU�GSPN�UIF�BNPVOUT�QSFTFOUFE�JO�UIF�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�ÇOBODJBM�QPTJUJPO��
A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing 
QBSUJFT�JO�BO�BSNkT�MFOHUI�USBOTBDUJPO��5IF�GBJS�WBMVF�JT�EFUFSNJOFE�CZ�SFGFSFODF�UP�UIF�NBSLFU�QSJDF�PG�UIF�ÇOBODJBM�
JOTUSVNFOU�PS�CZ�VTJOH�BO�BQQSPQSJBUF�WBMVBUJPO�UFDIOJRVF
�EFQFOEJOH�PO�UIF�OBUVSF�PG�UIF�JOTUSVNFOU��
 

29. Capital management

   The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital structure 
JO�PSEFS�UP�TVQQPSU�JUT�CVTJOFTT�BOE�NBYJNJTF�TIBSFIPMEFS�WBMVF��"T�BU����%FDFNCFS�����
�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�EFCU�UP�FRVJUZ�
ratio was 0.55:1 (2012: 1.37:1).

����3FDMBTTJÇDBUJPO
���$FSUBJO�BNPVOUT�JO�UIF�TUBUFNFOU�PG�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�JODPNF�GPS�UIF�ZFBS�FOEFE����%FDFNCFS������IBWF�CFFO�SFDMBTTJÇFE�
UP�DPOGPSN�UP�UIF�DVSSFOU�ZFBSkT�DMBTTJÇDBUJPO��

"T�SFDMBTTJÇFE As previously reported

Cost of services

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

10,617

115,950

69,836

10,192

94,513

91,698

����"QQSPWBM�PG�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT
5IFTF�ÇOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�XFSF�BVUIPSJTFE�GPS�JTTVF�CZ�UIF�$PNQBOZkT�#PBSE�PG�%JSFDUPST�PO����'FCSVBSZ������

5IF�SFDMBTTJÇDBUJPO�IBE�OP�FGGFDU�UP�QSFWJPVTMZ�SFQPSUFE�QSPÇU�PS�TIBSFIPMEFSTk�FRVJUZ�
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